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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
BT T BEFT BEF T BEFTT BETFTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
E Results

BRBL AR A Profit before taxation 72,012 66,884 56,652 106,418 226,585
Fre®i () /R Income tax (expense)/credit (3,765) (5,220) 695 (2,740) (4,346)
FEEGRT Profit for the year 68,247 61,664 57,347 103,678 222,239

REEHEF(BE)EBR  Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
RRREREREA Equity holders of the Company 64,494 56,700 59,849 104,825 222,239
DEREES Minority interest 3,753 4,964 (2,502) (1,147) —
FEERT Profit for the year 68,247 61,664 57,347 103,678 222,239
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
BEFT BETT BETT BT BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFE Net assets
W% - BERRE Property, plant and equipment 9,674 8,396 8,838 7,299 7,570
REME Investment properties 101,711 64,722 68,721 76,713 90,512
HELHR T ERE Leasehold land and land use rights 19,406 19,100 18,628 18,335 18,041
HEEHEE Jointly controlled entities 486,167 519,355 622,898 741,488 939,836
=N Associates 94,530 67,357 58,345 63,270 65,106
HHESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets — — 359,349 620,768 1,140,870
BZEEMHMES LT Held-to-maturity debt securities, unlisted 9,009 11,009 — — =
Hih&EE Other asset 58,050 58,050 — — =
EEMEHERE Deferred income tax assets — — 550 526 525
REEEFE Net current assets 408,112 480,280 297,879 243,518 520,214
RITER Bank borrowings — — (95,810) (47,929) (143,588)
EEFMEHAE Deferred income tax liabilities (1,573) (312) (199) (29,316) (6,748)
BEFE Net assets 1,185,086 1,227,957 1,339,199 1,694,672 2,632,338
i Total equity
BRA& Share capital 459,429 459,429 459,429 459,429 459,429
Hihf#ES Other reserves 654,847 678,331 821,892 1,129,435 1,919,783
REEF Retained profits
BIRRE Proposed dividend 18,377 — 13,783 18,377 27,566
Hith Others 37,980 73,716 29,732 87,431 224,531
NEZREANEERERHE Amount recognised directly in equity
FELENERD relating to non-current asset
EEBBNRE classified as held-for-sale — — — — 1,029
ERAREREEA Total equity attributable to equity
LR A holders of the Company 1,170,633 1,211,476 1,324,836 1,694,672 2,632,338
DERRES Minority interest 14,453 16,481 14,363 — =
s Total equity 1,185,086 1,227,957 1,339,199 1,694,672 2,632,338
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OVERALL RESULTS

In 2007, the Group recorded an audited consolidated profit
attributable to equity holders of HK$222.24 million, an increase
of HKS$117.42 million, or 112.0%, from HK$104.82 million in 2006.
Basic earnings per share reached 48.37 HK cents and the return
on average equity was 10.3%.

The Group produced exceptional results with the growth mainly
attributable to the increase in the recognition of dividend
income from Huaneng Power International, Inc. (“Huaneng”) by
HK$16.19 million, the increase in the share of profit after taxation
of Xiamen International Bank by HK$47.36 million, as well as the
gain of HK$49.66 million from the disposal of 36 million shares
of Huaneng during the year.
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DIVIDEND

In light of the satisfactory performance of the Group and the
gain of HK$49.66 million from the disposal of 36 million shares
of Huaneng during the year, the Directors have resolved to
recommend at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on 26th June 2008 the payment of a special
dividend of 2 HK cents per share totaling HK$9,188,573 (2006:
Nil) in addition to the payment of a final dividend of 4 HK cents
per share totaling HK$18,377,146 (2006: 4 HK cents per share
totaling HK$18,377,146) for the year ended 31st December 2007.
The proposed dividend, if approved, will be paid on or before
18th July 2008.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Banking Business

In 2007, the banking business of the Group attained satisfactory
growth and reported a rise in the profit after taxation by 50.4%
to HK$141.36 million, which accounted for 63.6% of the overall
results of the Group.

The Group, through its 36.75% interest in the Xiamen
International Bank Group, conducts banking business in
Mainland China and Macao. In 2007, riding on the favourable
operating environment resulting from the prosperous economy
in Mainland China and Macao, all lines of business of the Xiamen
International Bank Group maintained a healthy and rapid
development. At the same time, its operating results have also
attained a satisfactory growth. For the year ended 31st
December 2007, Xiamen International Bank’s consolidated net
profit as adjusted under the requirements of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards went up by 42.6% to RMB372.72
million from RMB261.40 million in 2006.

During the year under review, based on the figures reported in
the audited accounts of the Xiamen International Bank Group
prepared under PRC GAAP, the total assets grew by about 40.0%
to RMB42.8 billion. Loans to customers and customers’ deposits
were RMB26.3 billion and RMB32.6 billion respectively, an
increase of 70.1% and 27.5% respectively as compared with
those at the end of last year.The return on average equity rose
by 2.0% to 18.5%. The net interest income has increased by
48.5% to RMB650 million while the net fee and commission
income has increased by 47.7% to RMB110 million.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Banking Business (Continued)

Since the opening of its Beijing Branch in July 2007, Xiamen
International Bank continued to set up sub-branches in places
where branches have already been set up, making it the joint
venture bank having the most sub-branches in Xiamen.Looking
ahead, Xiamen International Bank will actively seek to expand
its network and set up sub-branches.

Insurance

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“MXIC"), the Group'’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, achieved a profit after taxation of
HK$7.76 million for the year ended 31st December 2007, an
increase of 19.9% from HK$6.47 million in 2006. During the year
under review, premium income has faced a downward pressure
due to market competition and operating expenses have faced
an upward pressure due to inflation. To combat such pressure,
we have strived hard in enhancing our underwriting standard
and operating efficiency.

To further strengthen the competitiveness of MXIC, we will
extend our ability to open up new business opportunity from
the Hong Kong and Macao markets by further investment in our
human resources.We remain mindful in bringing in better return
to our shareholders.

Property Development and I nvestment

In 2007, the property development and investment business of
the Group reported a profit after taxation of HK$5.67 million,
which represents a decrease of 29.4% from last year and
accounted for 2.6% of the overall results of the Group.

During the year, the Group set up a wholly-owned foreign
investment enterprise, Minxin (Suzhou) Property Development
Co., Ltd. (“Minxin Suzhou"), with a registered capital of HK$200
million, to undertake the development of the land successfully
bided by the Group through public auction at a consideration
of RMB285 million (equivalent to approximately HK$294 million).
Itis anticipated that the total gross floor area of the land is about
57,000 square meters. In accordance with the usage terms of
the land, Minxin Suzhou has planned to build 218 low-density
residential units which match with the peripheral natural
environment and the ancillary facilities of the ecology park
nearby.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Development and Investment (Continued)

As the project is still under the planning stage, Minxin Suzhou
recorded a loss of RMB5.46 million (including the amortisation
of land use right of RMB3.18 million) for the year ended 31st
December 2007.

During the year, two floors of the investment properties of the
Group in Fuzhou, Fujian Province (the “Fuzhou Property”) have
been leased out, generating a steady rental income to the Group.
For the year ended 31st December 2007, the Fuzhou Property
recorded a rental income of RMB2.43 million, as compared with
RMB2.43 million in last year. Owing to the rise in the property
price in Mainland China, the Fuzhou Property reported a rise of
26.6% in its fair value to RMB34 million as compared with last
year. Accordingly, the Group recognised a fair value gain of
RMB7.14 million, as compared with RMB3.92 million in last year.

Toll Road Investments

In 2007, through its 30% owned associated company, the Group’s
toll road investment in Maanshan, Anhui Province, recorded a
revenue of RMB53.98 million, an increase of 7.0% from RMB50.44
million in last year. It is anticipated that this investment will
continue to bring steady income to the Group.

At the end of 2007, the Group’s 40% owned associated company
completed the agreement entered into with the joint venture
partner of its subsidiary company in Mainland China for
disposing of its equity interest in the toll roads in Fenghua,
Zhejiang Province for a consideration of RMB70 million. As a
result, the Group realised a profit of HK$10.95 million.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
High-Tech Investments

Min Faith Investments Limited (“Min Faith”), an investment of
the Group engaging in the manufacturing of industrial digital
instruments through its subsidiaries in Mainland China, has
achieved another record profit after taxation of HK$15.21 million
in 2007, an increase of 20.9% from the profit after taxation of
HKS$12.58 million in 2006. Min Faith will fully exploit the
geographical advantages of its Hong Kong headquarters and
the research and production bases in Fujian and Tianjin for the
development of diversified product lines of instrumentation. It
will maintain to take the lead in the market place and will strive
to expand its business size and strengthen its competitiveness.

Investment in Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng Shares”)

As at 31st December 2007, the Group estimated the fair value
of its investment of Huaneng Shares at RMB1.07 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$1.14 billion) with reference to
the closing bid price of Huaneng’s A-Share of RMB14.84 per
share and a fair value gain of HK$690 million (2006: HK$260
million) was recognised in the investment revaluation reserve.
During the year, the Group received a final dividend for 2006 of
RMBO0.28 per share from Huaneng, generating a dividend income
of HK$31 million (2006: RMBO0.25 per share totaling HK$14.81
million).

The transaction regarding the execution of the transfer
agreement between the Group and Fujian Investment &
Enterprise Holdings Corporation for the transfer of 36 million
Huaneng Shares was completed in the second half of 2007.As a
result, the Group recorded a gain on disposal of about HK$49.66
million.

On 25th March 2008, Huaneng announced its results under the
PRC Accounting Standards for the year ended 31st December
2007, with earnings per share of RMBO0.5, which represents an
increase of 8.7% as compared with last year, and a final dividend
of RMBO.3 per share was proposed.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group maintained a healthy financial position during the
year under review. Based on 459,428,656 shares in issue (2006:
459,428,656 shares), the net asset value per share was HK$5.73
(2006: HK$3.69) at 31st December 2007. As at 31st December
2007, the total liabilities of the Group were HK$372.33 million
(2006: HK$263.31 million) and the ratio of total liabilities to total
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company was 0.14
(2006:0.16). As at 31st December 2007, the current assets and
current liabilities of the Group were HK$742.21 million (2006:
HK$429.58 million) and HK$221.99 million (2006: HK$186.06
million) respectively with a current ratio of 3.3 (2006: 2.3).

The Group’s five-year floating rate term loan with an outstanding
balance of HK$64 million as at 31st December 2006 had been
fully repaid during the year under review. The bank loan was
secured by a property (including the leasehold land component)
of the Group with a net book value of HK$13.97 million.

During the year, the Group obtained a three-year floating rate
term loan facility of HK$180 million and a revolving loan facility
of HK$20 million from a bank, of which HK$120 million is
designated for financing the property project of Minxin Suzhou.
These bank loan facilities are secured by the Group’s bank
deposit of HK$35.62 million, certain properties (including the
leasehold land component) with a book value of HK$57.52
million as at 31st December 2007, and share mortgages of the
Company'’s subsidiaries, namely Min Xin Properties Limited and
Minxin Suzhou. As at 31st December 2007, the outstanding
balance of these bank loans drawn down by the Group was
HK$185 million, of which HK$41 million has to be repaid within
2008, and the balance of HK$144 million in two to five years.

The gearing ratio of the Group (total borrowings and advances
divided by total net assets) as at 31st December 2007 was 7.0%
(2006: 3.8%).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

As at 31st December 2007, bank deposits of the Group
amounted to HK$365.01 million (2006: HK$384.30 million) which
included deposits of RMB115.31 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$123.13 million) placed with certain banks in
Mainland China (2006: RMB237.16 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$236.27 million).

The Group’s assets, liabilities and receipts and payments are
primarily denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi. As
the increase in the exchange rate of Renminbi has accelerated
steadily, the Group’s net monetary assets denominated in
Renminbi has resulted in foreign currency translation gain of
approximately HK$9.35 million recorded by the Group for the
year ended 31st December 2007 (2006: HK$5.65 million). Apart
from the change in Renminbi exchange rate, the Group
anticipates that it will not face material risks arising from foreign
exchange rates fluctuation.

As at 31st December 2007, the capital commitments of the
Group amounted to HK$3.23 million (including the share of
capital commitments of HK$0.51 million of the jointly controlled
entities).

As at 31st December 2007, the Group does not have any material
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOY EES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31st December 2007, the Group had 64 employees. The
remuneration of the employees is based on individual merits
and experience.The Group also provides other benefits to the
employees including retirement benefits and medical scheme.

11
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PROSPECTS

Looking forward into 2008, we believe that the macroeconomic
adjustment policy in Mainland China will continue to be an
important measure for the government to constrain inflation.
Nevertheless, the Board remains prudently optimistic of the
economic growth of Mainland China and is confident of the long
term steady growth of all the businesses of the Group. In the
coming year, the Group will pay closer attention to the policies
and market changes so as to ensure that the profits of its
banking business will continue to boost.The Group also believes
that its prior experience in real estate industry in Mainland China
will assist it to increase its investments prudently even under
the implementation of the macroeconomic adjustment policy
so as to generate long term steady and attractive return to the
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to our friends for their support, and
to the management and all our staff for their dedicated services
and contribution.

DING SHI DA
Chairman

HONG KONG, 24th April 2008
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Ding Shi Da, aged 59, has been appointed as Chairman of
the Company since April 2002. Mr Ding is a Senior Economist in
Mainland China and holds a Doctorate Degree in Management
from the Postgraduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social
Science.He has spent about 35 years in various large companies
such as Fujian Building Materials Industry Company and Fujian
Building Materials Holding Co., Ltd., as well as the economic
administration department of the government in Shang Hang
County and Long Yan Region. He has extensive experience in
capital and financial management and has previously assumed
the positions of Chief Leader and Section Head of the Economic
Committee in Long Yan Region, General Manager of Fujian
Building Materials Industry Company and Fujian Building
Materials Holding Co., Ltd.,and Chairman of Fujian Cement Inc.,
a listed company in Shanghai. He is currently the President of
Fujian Investment & Enterprise Holdings Corporation, the
Chairman of Vigour Fine Company Limited, and the President of
Samba Limited, all of which are substantial shareholders of the
Company.

Mr Chen Gui Zong, aged 66, was appointed as Vice Chairman
of the Company in January 1997.He acted as Chairman of the
Company for the period from July 1999 to July 2000 and was re-
appointed as Vice Chairman since then. Mr Chen is a Senior
Economist in Mainland China. He has spent about 34 years in
various finance and economic departments of the Fujian
Provincial Government, Putian Municipal Government, The
Fuzhou Branch of The People’s Bank of China, and The Planning
and Budget Division, External Economic Affairs Committee and
investments enterprises in Fuzhou and has previously assumed
the positions of Section Head, General Manager, Mayor, Deputy
Chief Secretary and Director of Administrative Office of the
Provincial Government. He is currently the Chairman of Xiamen
International Bank.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr Zhu Xue Lun, aged 56, has been appointed as a Director of
the Company since April 2003. Mr Zhu is an university graduate
and an Engineer in Mainland China.He has spent a long time in
corporate management and has extensive experience in
corporate management, property management,investment and
capital management. He has previously assumed the positions
of Director of Taining Light Industry Bureau in Fujian Province,
Head of Taining County, General Manager of Huafu Real Estate
Company in Fujian Province. He is currently a Vice President of
Fujian Investment & Enterprise Holdings Corporation and a
Director of Vigour Fine Company Limited, both of which are
substantial shareholders of the Company.

Mr Weng Jian Yu, aged 51, has been appointed as a Director of
the Company since November 2004. Mr Weng joined the
Company as Deputy General Manager in June 2004 and has
served as the General Manager of the Company since October
2004. He is an Economist in Mainland China. He has over
20 years’management experience in financial companies which
include banks, trust companies and fund management
companies etc. He is currently a Director of Vigour Fine Company
Limited and Samba Limited, both of which are substantial
shareholders of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Wang Hui Jin, aged 45, has been appointed as a Director of
the Company since October 2005. Mr Wang is an university
graduate and holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics. He is a
Senior Accountant in Mainland China. He has spent a long time
in corporate management and has extensive experience in
corporate management, financial management and capital
management. He has previously assumed the positions of
Deputy and Section Head of the Finance Department of Fuzhou
Medical Centre in Fujian Province, General Manager of Fuzhou
Medical Centre in Fujian Province, Vice Chairman and General
Manager of Fuzhou Tong Chun Pharmaceutical Group
Corporation, Chairman of Fuzhou Chang Chun Pharmaceutical
Company and Chief Accountant of Fujian Investment
Development Company. He has also served as Chairman of the
Supervisory Committee of CNOOC Fujian Gas Ltd.and CNOOC
Fujian Gas Power Ltd. He is currently a Vice President and the
Chief Accountant of Fujian Investment & Enterprise Holdings
Corporation, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr Chen Le, aged 48, has been appointed as a Director of the
Company since June 2006. Mr Chen has spent a long time in
capital and corporate management and has extensive
experience in international capital market financing and
corporate management. He has previously assumed the
positions of Director of County Bureau of Goods and Materials,
Section Director of the Planning Commission of Ningde
Prefecture in Fujian Province, General Manager of Ningde
Investment & Development Company, and General Manager of
the Corporate Planning Department and the Finance
Department of Fujian Investment & Enterprise Holdings
Corporation.He is currently a Vice President of Fujian Investment
& Enterprise Holdings Corporation, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, and also a Director of All Trust Insurance Co., Ltd.
as well as the Chairman of Fujian International Leasing Co., Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Ip Kai Ming, aged 56, has been appointed as a Director of
the Company since April 1989. He is currently an Executive
Director and General Manager of Luso International Banking
Limited in Macao.He is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors,
and has over 30 years’ extensive experience in banking and
finance.He is also a member of Beijing Municipal Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Director
of the Macao Chamber of Commerce, the Vice Chairman of the
Executive Board of the Macao Institute of Financial Services and
a Vice Chairman of the Macao Chinese Enterprises Association.

Mr Robert Tsai To Sze, aged 67, has been appointed as a Director
of the Company since May 1999.He is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was a partner
of an international firm of accountants with which he practised
for over 20 years. He is currently a non-executive director to a
number of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr So Hop Shing, aged 60, has been appointed as a Director of
the Company since September 2004. He is a practising solicitor
and senior partner of Tang and So, Solicitors and Notaries.
Mr So is the holder of Bachelor of Laws Degree from the
University of London, Master of Laws Degree from the City
University of Hong Kong and The People’s University of China,
and Doctor of Laws Degree from Peking University.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Cai Xiao Hong, aged 53, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in June 1995. She holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the University of California, Los
Angeles and has previously worked for various large companies.
She has over 20 years’ extensive experience in financial and
investment management.

Mr Lin Zhu Fu, aged 44, joined the Company as Deputy General
Manager in September 2006. Mr Lin graduated from the Fujian
College of Engineering in Architecture and Beijing Jiaotong
University in Law. He is an Engineer and Senior Corporate
Controller in Mainland China and has over 24 years’ experience
in real estate development, construction, investment
management and corporate management.

Ms Wu Dan Ying, aged 39, joined the Company as Group Chief
Auditor in November 2003 and was appointed as Deputy
General Manager from October 2005 to December 2007. Ms Wu
graduated from the Hunan University in financial accounting.
She is an Accountant in Mainland China and has over 19 years
of extensive experience in financial management.

Mr Huang Jian Feng, aged 42, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in January 2006. Mr Huang holds a Master’s
Degree in Economics from the Shanghai University of Finance
& Economics and a Bachelor’s Degree in Science from the Sun
Yat-Sen University. He has been working for various trust,
securities and fund management companies in Mainland China
and has almost 20 years of extensive experience in financial and
investment management.

Mr Chan Kwong Yu, aged 37, joined the Company in April 2000.
He was appointed as the Qualified Accountant and Deputy
Financial Controller of the Company in July 2004 and was
promoted to Financial Controller in January 2008. He is a
Certified Public Accountant and a Fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Before joining the Company
in 2000, he has worked for various listed companies in Hong
Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree in Accounting
and has 18 years of extensive experience in finance and
accounting.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr Chen Hua Ming, aged 41, joined the Company as a Manager
in the Company’s Investment Department in November 2003
and was appointed as Group Chief Auditor from October 2005
to December 2007. Mr Chen graduated from the Sun Yat-Sen
University in accounting. He is an accountant in Mainland China
and has over 20 years of extensive experience in financial,
investment and corporate management.

Ms Huang Yu Chai, aged 44, joined the Company as Group Chief
Auditor in January 2008. Ms Huang, an university graduate, is a
Certified Internal Auditor, and a Senior Accountant in Mainland
China. She has been committed to the fields of financial and
auditing for a long period of time, and has extensive experience
in financial management and audit for more than 24 years.

Mr Chan Kwok Kwong, aged 49, joined Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
in 1999 and was appointed as Chief Executive in October of the
same year.He holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree
in Engineering (Civil & Structural Engineering) from the Sheffield
University of England. He has acquired extensive experience
from various multi-national insurance and reinsurance
companies for 21 years.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

For the financial year ended 31st December 2007, the Company
has applied the principles and complied with all the
requirements set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the“Listing Rules”) except for the deviation
from code provision A.4.1 in respect of the service terms of Non-
executive Directors, details of which are set out in this report.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company currently
comprises a total of nine Directors, with four Executive Directors,
two Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The three Independent Non-executive
Directors collectively possess a wide range of expertise on
accounting, financial management and legal areas.The Directors'’
biographical information is set out on pages 13 to 16.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules to the Company. Accordingly, the Company is
of the view that all the Independent Non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Board determines the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance.lt also decides on matters such as annual budgets
and business plans, major transactions, director appointments
or re-appointments, and dividend and accounting policies.The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to senior management
under the supervision of the General Manager and the Executive
Committee of the Board of Directors.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board meetings are normally scheduled in advance to facilitate
fullest possible attendance. Each Director is invited to present
any businesses that he wishes to discuss or propose at such
meetings. All Directors have access to appropriate business
documents and information about the Company on a timely
basis. The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to senior management of the Company.
Directors may choose to take independent professional advice
at the Company’s expenses, if necessary. Drafts and final versions
of minutes are circulated to all the Directors for comments.The
Company held five full Board meetings in 2007 and the average
attendance rate was 87%. Individual attendance of each Director
at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings and the
Remuneration Committee meeting during 2007 is set out below:

HEER / EHRRE
Attendance / Number of Meetings
EEE B&ZZEEE FMESE

Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee

PITES
THERE (FFE)
BREREE BIEE)
REMAE
PEFEE BEE)

BIFPTES

SEBEEE
(FEREEETE)

EREBALE
FHESEL/E)

BEmMEE
ERTES

ITeRitt
BR&EJEE

Executive Directors

Mr Ding Shi Da (Chairman)

Mr Chen Gui Zong (Vice Chairman)
Mr Zhu Xue Lun

Mr Weng Jian Yu (General Manager)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Robert Tsai To Sze
(Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr Ip Kai Ming
(Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee)
Mr So Hop Shing

Non-executive Directors
Mr Wang Hui Jin
Mr Chen Le

5/5

5/5

5/5

5/5

3/5

4/5

3/5

4/5
5/5

3/3

3/3

2/3

1/1

1/1

1/1

1/1
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and
the existing General Manager (acting in the capacity of Chief
Executive Officer) of the Company are held by separate
individuals with a view to maintain an effective segregation of
duties regarding management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. One of the important roles
of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board to ensure
that the Board acts in the best interests of the Group. The
Chairman ensures that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The
Chairman has delegated the responsibility for drawing up the
agenda for each Board meeting to the General Manager and
the Company Secretary. Senior management is responsible for
the day-to-day operations of the Group under the leadership of
the General Manager of the Company. The General Manager,
working with the Executive Committee and supported by other
management, is responsible for managing the businesses of the
Group, including implementation of strategies adopted by the
Board and assuming full accountability to the Board for the
operations of the Group.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of Executive Directors in 2007.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Since the full Board is involved in the appointment of new
Directors, the Company has not established a Nomination
Committee.The Board will take into consideration criteria such
as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when
considering new director appointments.

The Non-executive Directors of the Company have not been
appointed for a specific term as required by Code Provision A.4.1;
but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The Articles of Association of the Company requires every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term or
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the Executive
Committee which currently consists of three Executive Directors
of the Board, namely Mr Ding Shi Da, Mr Chen Gui Zong and Mr
Zhu Xue Lun.These members meet frequently as and when
necessary.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr Robert Tsai To Sze who
was a partner of an international firm of accountants with which
he practised for over 20 years. It is responsible for the
appointment of external auditors, reviewing the Group’s
financial information and providing oversight of the Group's
financial reporting and internal control system. It is also
responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the
Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval.
It meets regularly to review financial reporting and internal
control matters and to perform such duties it has unrestricted
access to both the Company’s external and internal auditors.

In 2007, the Audit Committee held three meetings with an
average attendance rate of 89%. At the meetings, it reviewed
the final results for the year ended 31st December 2006 and the
interim accounts for the six months ended 30th June 2007
respectively with the external auditors; and also the activities
of the Group’s internal audit function and its findings and
recommendations as laid down in the internal audit reports.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Company’s
remuneration policy, and the formulation and review of the
specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and
senior management of the Company.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors.This Committee is chaired
by Mr Ip Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-executive Director.
The other members are Mr Robert Tsai To Sze, Mr So Hop Shing,
Mr Weng Jian Yu and Mr Chan Kwong Yu.

During 2007, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the fees
of the Directors,and payment of bonus to the management staff.
It also reviewed the Company’s proposed salary adjustments to
its employees. One meeting was held in 2007 with the
attendance rate of 100%.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains sound and effective controls to safeguard the Group’s
assets.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of
system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s
objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal control of the Group and reports directly to the Audit
Committee and the Board. It has unrestricted access to review
all aspects of the Group’s activities and internal controls. It also
conducts special audits of areas of concern identified by the
Audit Committee or management.The Audit committee has free
and direct access to the Head of the Internal Audit Department
without reference to the Chairman or Management.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

In 2007, the Board, through the Audit Committee and Internal
Audit Department, conducted an annual review of the Group’s
internal control system.The annual review was coordinated by
the Group’s Internal Audit Department, which, after senior
management and each business and operational unit had
performed their self-assessment, have carried out independent
examination and other post-assessment work on the review
process and results. The results of the 2007 review had been
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring such
accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; and
that judgments and estimates made are prudent and
reasonable.

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the fees paid or payable
to the external Auditors for statutory audit services, attestation
work (in relation to interim financial statements and circular
issued by the Company), and tax and consultancy services were
HK$2,904,000, HK$456,000 and HK$102,600 respectively.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIESTRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting
than that required by the Listing Rules. Following a specific
enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they complied with the
code of conduct for transactions in the Company’s securities
throughout the year.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing

securities transactions by employees who may possess or have
access to price sensitive information.
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The directors hereby present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALY SIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.The
activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 18 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2007
are set out on page 34.

The directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a
special dividend of 2 HK cents per ordinary share totaling
HK$9,188,573 (2006: Nil) in addition to the payment of a final
dividend of 4 HK cents per ordinary share totaling HK$18,377,146
(2006: 4 HK cents per ordinary share totaling HK$18,377,146)
for the year ended 31st December 2007.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, net assets and total equity of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are
shown in Note 15 to the financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTSHELD

Details of the Group’s principal property interests held for
investment purpose are set out on page 204.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are shown in Note
35 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st December 2007,
calculated under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, amounted to HK$91,772,000 (2006: HK$24,345,141).

DIRECTORS

The names of the directors serving during the year and at the
date of this report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with articles 94 and 95 of the Company'’s Articles
of Association, Messrs Ding Shi Da, So Hop Shing and Wang Hui
Jin will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation.

The Company has received from each independent non-
executive director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Company considers all the independent
non-executive directors are independent as defined in the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company'’s
business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

At 31st December 2007, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (“Model Code”) were as follows:

RAAFEERZIZFE
Long Position in Ordinary Shares of the Company
BMOfRRBE S
M E BRERGEE Approximate
EENE Nature of Number of percentage of
Name of Director interests shares held shareholding
ERE B A=
Ip Kai Ming Personal interest 666,000 0.14%

BREXFTIEEEN  R-ZFZTLHF+-RA=
T—B  ARAESRITHARBELLLD
BRI EMEBOAE (2E 5 R B ARG EXVERFT
EHER) WRD - HEROIESHERE
AZARERZ R BERAIEI2FRETHEFN
BEMARSIRERETARAELLF
REXFrzERZRAR s MARAZESH
BEZRBHI8EAT 2 F LR FRANER
BREMEINURBAQRANRSRETEZ
LR o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2007, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code; and none of the directors or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during
the year.
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ABEHE

Name of Corporation
Samba Limited (“Samba”)
Papilio Inc.

BEARAA (TEF)D

Vigour Fine Company Limited (“Vigour Fine")

BEREGEFEEQR (BRREDZE])
Fujian Investment & Enterprise
Holdings Corporation (“FIEC")

BNP Paribas Asset Management
Schroder Investment Management Limited
MrEE -

1. PapilioInciFBESambal iR AEH =92 —=
LERERE » IR B A SambaR A1 B F
$5144,885,0008 IR 17 HY #E 25 ©

2. BfEEESambalRAEM=92—=UE
RERE 0 WEBEESambaA AR D B T iF
144,885,000/% R 19 BY 2= o

3. REREGCEDREFHEERR HELE
FEERARREERIBEEFSROOE

= o

4. BNP Paribas Asset Management3&i8 & % Bl 14
Parvest Investment Management Company
S.A.J% Shinhan BNP Paribas Investment Trust
Management Co., Ltd. R HIE B ER
13,070,000/ % 19,894,000 % B% {2 A9 2% o

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO recorded that, as at 31st December 2007, the
following corporations had interests (as defined in the SFO) in

the Company:
BamRE 9L
BERMHE Approximate
Bt et Number of percentage of
Notes shares held shareholding
144,885,000 31.54%
1 169,125,000 36.81%
2 192,764,600 41.96%
3 192,764,600 41.96%
4 32,964,000 7.17%
23,040,000 5.01%

Notes:

Papilio Inc. held one third or more of the voting power at general
meetings of Samba and was deemed to be interested in
144,885,000 shares of the Company owned by Samba.

Vigour Fine held one third or more of the voting power at general
meetings of Samba and was deemed to be interested in
144,885,000 shares of the Company owned by Samba.

FIEC was the controlling shareholder of Vigour Fine and was
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company owned
by Vigour Fine directly or indirectly.

BNP Paribas Asset Management was deemed to be interested in
13,070,000 and 19,894,000 shares through its holdings in Parvest
Investment Management Company S.A.and Shinhan BNP Paribas
Investment Trust Management Co., Ltd. respectively.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOL DERS (Continued)

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the
ordinary shares of the Company. As at 31st December 2007, no
short positions were recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year,the Company renewed the annual management
agreement with Vigour Fine, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, whereby Vigour Fine provides management services
to the Company which include the provision of directors to the
board of directors of the Company. A management fee of
HK$1,880,000 has been paid to Vigour Fine during the year.

Messrs Ding Shi Da, Zhu Xue Lun and Weng Jian Yu have interest
in the above transaction as directors of Vigour Fine.

Except for the above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILSOF DIRECTORSAND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details in respect of the Company’s directors
and senior management are set out on pages 13 to 18.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its
products and services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less
than 30% of its products and services to its 5 largest customers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31st December 2007, which are not
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules as connected
transactions, are disclosed in Notes 19, 20, 32, 39(a), 39(b) and
39(e) to the financial statements.

Other related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in
Notes 21, 25,31, 39(c) and 39(d) to the financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, as of the
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

POST BALANCE SHEET DATE EVENTS

Details of the post balance sheet date events are disclosed in
Note 40 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

DING SHI DA
Chairman

HONG KONG, 24th April 2008
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Min
Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 203, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31st December 2007, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24th April 2008
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2 22007F12A31 H IEFE For the year ended 31st December 2007
2007 2006
T BEFIT BT T
Note HKS’000 HKS’000
—f 1] Turnover 5 92,890 86,586
PN ] Total revenues 5 | 92,325 | 81,012
HibWrs — iF8E Other gains - net 6 | 73m7| 14,356
RGERELNEEEFE  Netinsurance claims incurred and
kAEEH commission expenses incurred
on insurance business 7 (39,538) (36,839)
=P Staff costs (28,051) (23,000)
E N Depreciation and amortisation (4,855) (2,003)
FEUR & TR B 18 Impairment of loan receivable 8 — (3,227)
Hih& £ Other operating expenses (18,680) (18,983)
EXEMLEEE Total operating expenses (91,129 (84,052)
EXimFl Operating profit 8 74,318 11,316
A& KA Finance costs 9 (9,622) (8,068)
iR ZEEREE Share of results of jointly
controlled entities 19(a) 147,440 99,033
FEEE=E N EEE Share of results of associates 20 14,449 4,137
B Bt A izz A Profit before taxation 226,585 106,418
e H Income tax expense 11 (4,346) (2,740)
KEE DT Profit for the year 222,239 103,678
AEEGT(BEE)ZBR  Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
AAREREFEA Equity holders of the Company 12 222,239 104,825
DEBRER Minority interest — (1,147)
AEERF Profit for the year 222,239 103,678
k2 Dividend
— XKEKRE — Final dividend 13 18,377 18,377
— SRR E — Special dividend 13 9,189 —
27,566 18,377
23] Bl
HK CENTS HK CENTS
FERNEXATIHELSEFBA  Earnings per share for profit
FEAG i Fl 2 attributable to the equity holders
BEREH of the Company for the year
— BEXRiEE — Basic and diluted 14 48.37 22.82
SRS Dividend per share
— KRS — Final dividend 4 4
— Rl 2 — Special dividend 2 —
6 4
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200712 A31 HEE As at 31st December 2007
2007 2006
T BT IT BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
ERHEE Non-current assets
W - WERRE Property, plant and equipment 15 7,570 7,299
REYE Investment properties 16 90,512 76,713
HEL MR i AR Leasehold land and land use rights 17 18,041 18,335
HEEZEFER Jointly controlled entities 19 939,836 741,488
N Associates 20 65,106 63,270
AHHESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 1,140,870 620,768
ELEFMEHREE Deferred income tax assets 34 525 526
2,262,460 | 1,528,399
RENE E Current assets
* tth {5F F #E Land use rights 17 313,342 —
IE FE BN 1S B AR Deferred acquisition costs 22 12,944 15,861
R B FE WL SR Insurance receivable 23 10,293 13,167
BREEE Reinsurance assets 24 7,373 10,338
H th fE W BR X Other debtors 25 15,000 1,990
] Y [B] 28 B 5 18 Current income tax recoverable = 22
EAREEZE Prepayment and deposits 1,902 1,083
BAFEBBERIER Financial assets at fair value
MEmEE through profit or loss
—BEEEMN LT — listed equity securities held
IR HREE 5 for trading 26 5,247 2,820
HERBRITET Cash and bank balances 27 365,007 384,297
731,108 429,578
BIELENFERBEE Non-current asset classified as
held-for-sale 28 11,099 —
______ 742207 | 429578
RENBE Current liabilities
RIS & Insurance contracts 29 74,053 88,298
R Bsx FE 15 5K Insurance payable 30 5,313 4,717
HMEBEFRRESTER  Other creditors and accruals 31 18,656 32,199
BizE Deposits received 32 74,743 44,830
EWHERELEN Deposits received for disposal of
IRBEENRS non-current asset held-for-sale 28 8,542 =
RITER Bank borrowings 33 40,422 15,945
FE A3 A HA i 18 Current income tax payable 264 71
______ 221,903 | 186,060
mENEEFE Net currentassets | . 520,214 | . 243,518
BEERAESERE Total assets less current liabilities 2,782,674 1,771,917
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2007F12A31HEE As at 31st December 2007
2007 2006
TR BETFT BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
ERHERE Non-current liabilities
RITER Bank borrowings 33 143,588 47,929
EEFEHEAR Deferred income tax liabilities 34 6,748 29,316
150,336 77,245
AEFE Net assets 2,632,338 1,694,672
& Share capital 35 459,429 459,429
Hibfite & Other reserves 35 1,919,783 1,129,435
REBimF Retained profits
KR E Proposed dividend 35 27,566 18,377
Hit Others 35 224,531 87,431
Rz iR P B gD Amount recognised directly
B EH EMNIERE in equity relating to non-current
SERRMRIE asset classified as held-for-sale 35 1,029 —
AATHERFEAN Total equity attributable to equity
FE{GHETR 4 EE holders of the Company 2,632,338 1,694,672
T & Ding Shi Da
EE Director
HETF Weng Jian Yu

BEE Director
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20074F12 31 H#E As at 31st December 2007
2007 2006
T BETIT BEF T
Note HKS$’000 HKS’000
ERHEE Non-current assets
M - HIERERE Property, plant and equipment 15 2,763 3,268
REYFE Investment properties 16 38,012 28,313
FHE T b f £ it {F FH#E Leasehold land and land use rights 17 2,820 2,829
MEAR Subsidiaries 18 457,683 136,330
HEZGIER Jointly controlled entities 19 205,800 205,800
AN Associates 20 = 10,070
AHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 1,140,870 620,768
_____ 1,847,948 | 1,007,378
REBEE Current assets
H At FE U BR X Other debtors 25 13,436 597
ENREEZES Prepayment and deposits 677 681
FE Uz — 1 1B 2 R AR B Dividend receivable from a subsidiary 5,500 1,001
BAFEZEBERD R Financial assets at fair value
MEmEE N through profit or loss
—REFEEN LD — listed equity securities held
IR 55 25 for trading 26 278 426
REeERBITEE Cash and bank balances 27 295,507 307,972
315,398 310,677
BELENERBEE Non-current asset classified as
held-for-sale 28 10,070 —
_______ 325,468 | 310677
mEEE N Current liabilities
HapEFBRANESTER Other creditors and accruals 31 12,620 25,863
SWizS Deposits received 32 74,743 44,830
EWHERSFEHEN Deposits received for disposal of
FRBEENRE non-current asset held-for-sale 28 8,542 =
IRITER Bank borrowings 33 40,422 15,945
_______ 136,327 | 86638
RENEEFE Net currentassets | 189,141 | 224,039
BEERRHER Total assets less current liabilites | 2,037,089 | 1,231,417
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
RITER Bank borrowings 33 143,588 47,929
EFTBHARE Deferred income tax liabilities 34 6,418 28,854
_______ 150,006 | 76,783
BEFE Net assets 1,887,083 1,154,634
3 Share capital 35 459,429 459,429
Hitvta & Other reserves 35 1,335,882 670,860
R B A Retained profits
BRAR S Proposed dividend 35 27,566 18,377
HAt Others 35 64,206 5,968
LB E Total equity 1,887,083 1,154,634
Tt Ding Shi Da
EE Director
HETF Weng Jian Yu
EE Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN EQUITY

2 22007F12A31 H IEFE For the year ended 31st December 2007
2007 2006
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS'000
R1A1BZ#EEEE Total equity as at 1st January 1,694,672 1,339,199
AEEEREE Change in fair value of available-for-sale
NEEEE financial assets 688,044 261,419
- HEEHERIEE Change in fair value of available-for-sale
AHEERERE financial assets held by a jointly
NEEEH controlled entity 5,282 29,807
- HEEHERBLE Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets
AftHEERERE held by a jointly controlled entity (338) (1,790)
BENTHEFIEHER  Disposal of non-current assets held-for-sale
ERBEE held by an associate (5,905) —
BRELMEBHERE Deferred income tax liabilities recognised (18,378) (33,904)
HWIETERIELFTSHEMRE  Deferred income tax liabilities de-recognised 47,336 —
HETHEESREE Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets (49,595) —
HE-HB AT Disposal of a subsidiary = (1,008)
BRE /I BTT%’A\ A Exchange differences arising on translation
& N B ] A [E 2 of the financial statements of foreign
E%EE’JEZT?F%¥E%=ZFﬁ subsidiaries, associates and
EENELERE jointly controlled entities 67,358 24,464
EENERRES Net income recognised directly
ZFBA in equity 733,804 278,988
KEEGF Profit for the year 222,239 103,678
RIBRRELRZFWNAN Net income recognised in the
income statement 222,239 103,678
KEFHEDZFBA Net income recognised for the year 956,043 382,666
HE-MBAT Disposal of a subsidiary — (13,410)
4458 Dividend (18,377) (13,783)
R12A318B 2 H#EREE Total equity as at 31st December 2,632,338 1,694,672
PR HEZR AR P B i RR B Amount recognised directly in equity
FEH ERIERE relating to non-current asset
EEFHEMRIE classified as held-for-sale 1,029 =
Hip Others 2,631,309 1,694,672
2,632,338 1,694,672
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2 22007F12A31 H IEF& For the year ended 31st December 2007
2007 2006
TrE EEETIT BT T
Note HKS$’000 HKS’000
BEFHREGRT) Net cash (outflow) / inflow from
SRR operations 38(a) (297,219) 27,402
BERBITERFE Interest income from bank deposits
received 6,763 9,886
2 FE Interest paid (9,146) (7,752)
2fHIR Tax paid (125) (111)
BEERZTHINS(GEH) Net cash (outflow) / inflow from
SRR operating activities (299,727) 29,425
BETH Investing activities
2R —HEZFER Dividends received from a jointly
3=t controlled entity — 21,642
BR—BEQTRE Dividends received from an associate 2,760 2,824
EWHEFELEN Deposit received for disposal of
IRBEENRE non-current asset classified
as held-for-sale 8,266 —
PN AN Purchase of associates (7) —
BABEEEN LD Purchase of listed equity securities
IR & 5 held for trading (5,513) (3,872)
KEETF—RBEAF Recovery of loan receivable from
Y FE U & K an unrelated company — 53,421
HEREBEEN L™ Sale of listed equity securities
IR R & 5 held for trading 3,346 10,681
BAREMEURYZE Purchase of investment properties and
CHEBEREE property, plant and equipment (1,543) (1,004)
BRFZEMAKELD Redemption of unlisted
(£ held-to-maturity debt securities — 11,000
HE—KER A Sale of a subsidiary 38(b) — 8,751
HEHE T AR Sale of leasehold land and property,
CHBEREE plant and equipment — 1
HEAHREEESREE Sale of available-for-sale financial
assets 154,999 —
BETHRERNTFE Net cash inflow from investing
activities 162,308 103,444
MEMHESGRE) Net cash (outflow) / inflow before
S RNFE financing (137,419) 132,869
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2 22007F12A31 H IEFE For the year ended 31st December 2007
2007 2006
TrE BEFIT BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
L& Financing
S SR GE-E Short term advances obtained = 32,282
BEBRITER Bank loans obtained 183,543 —
BE—FERRENR Loan from a substantial shareholder
obtained 39(d) — 117,000
BEEHBR Short term advances repaid = (16,438)
BERITER Bank loans repaid (64,000) (56,000
BE—FERRER Loan from a substantial shareholder
repaid 39(d) — (117,000)
RERBEREEEEHEE  Withdrawal of bank deposits pursuant
REZIRITER to insurance regulatory requirements 2,347 248
FHRIEREFR Placement of pledged deposits (35,622) —
RE R B Dividend paid (18,377) (13,783)
BMEBEREAAN (HH) Net cash inflow / (outflow) from
| financing 67,891 (53,691)
HERREZEEY (Decrease) / increase in cash and
(Rid), i cash equivalents (69,528) 79,178
1A1BEBGEZHRER Cash and cash equivalents at
He%EEY 1st January 363,077 278,907
HeERBEE%EEY Exchange gains on cash and
BE 52 Ui 3= cash equivalents 16,963 4,992
122A31HEBEZHRER Cash and cash equivalents at
Re%EY 31st December 310,512 363,077
HeERBE2%EEY Analysis of the balances of cash
HEaRar and cash equivalents
HEeRIRITERE Cash and bank balances 27 365,007 384,297
W RIBREEEEEHME  Less: Bank deposits placed pursuant
REMERZ to insurance regulatory
RITTER requirements 27 (18,873) (21,220)
KR FR Pledged deposits 27 (35,622) =
310,512 363,077
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refer to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in financial services,
property development and investment, toll road
investment, industrial instrument manufacturing and
investment holding businesses.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong.The address of its registered office is 17th
Floor, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong
Kong.The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements were approved
for issue by the Board of Directors on 24th April 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basisof preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collectively refer to all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and have been
aligned with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basisof preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below:

— available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss

— investment properties

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with the HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events
and actions, actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Estimates and judgement made by management are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity or where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changesin accounting policies
The Group has applied, for the first time, the following

new HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st

January 2007.
— Amendment to Presentation of Financial
HKAS 1 Statements — Capital
Disclosures
— HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

— HK(IFRIC) - Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

— HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

— HK(IFRIC) - Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting
and Impairment

The Group has assessed the impact of the adoption
of these new HKFRSs and considered that there was
no material impact on the Group’s results and
financial position nor any substantial changes in the
Group’s accounting policies, but will have certain
presentation implications. These changes are
summarised as below:
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation of
Financial Statements - Capital Disclosures”
affects the disclosures about qualitative
information about the Group’s objective,
policies and processes for managing capital;
quantitative data about what the Company
regards as capital; and compliance with any
capital requirements and the consequences of
any non-compliance.

HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
requires disclosures that enable users of the
financial statements to evaluate the significance
of the Group’s financial instruments and the
nature and extent of risks arising from those
financial instruments and also incorporate many
of the disclosure requirements of HKAS 32
“Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation”

HK(IFRIC) - Int 8 “Scope of HKFRS 2” requires
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”to be applied
to any arrangements where equity instruments
are issued for consideration which appears to
be less than fair value.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 “Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives” requires the Group to assess the
existence of an embedded derivative at the
date the Group first becomes party to the
contract, with reassessment performed only if
there is a change to the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows.
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2 EHEEFBOR () 2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.2 HHEHBUREE () 2.2 Changesin accounting policies (Continued)

— B ERIBREZREES —  HK(FRIC) - Int 10 “Interim Financial Reporting

B) -REEREIPHES and Impairment” prohibits the impairment
& RRE] T R AR losses recognised in an interim period on
FHREREEHE  RETL goodwill, investments in equity instruments
ENRERURAKTTENS and investments in financial assets carried at
MEERINBEREEN cost to be reversed at a subsequent balance
EEBEKBTHUER - sheet date.

BEAUKRRTIEE  FESE Up to the date of issue of the financial statements,

MASEEMZEFEBMBRE the HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs

ZH|  ZEHBBUBEREEIR which are not yet effective for the accounting year

B ZE2007F 12831 B LB FEN ended 31st December 2007 and which have not been

REM  TRERBELRMBEREK early adopted in these financial statements.

RER4R o

ZEMENEBMBREEINE Of these developments, the following relate to

FoEARTIRE 2 EER KR matters that may be relevant to the Group’s

RWEAWMT : operations and financial statements:

—BERBRE rESH — HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
BRI
(CHES]

—BRUBRE KE DT — HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
KB E 85

—BBEER BEKA — HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs
£23%

(CHES!

— EBETES RERERNNE — HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and
$275% S Separate Financial
CHES; Statements

— &% (@ERRE  FFREHTE — HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty
RERBZES Programmes
g) -2E

5135
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2

2.3

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these new HKFRSs is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group'’s results of
operations and financial position.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31st December.

(@) Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Group.
Control existed when the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that presently are exercisable are taken
into account.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commenced until the date
that control ceases.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by
the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group's share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill (Note 2.4). If the cost of acquisition is
less than the fair value of the identifiable net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in the income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised profits but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed,
where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the
net assets of subsidiaries attributable to
interests that are not owned by the Company,
whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries. Minority interests are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. Minority
shareholders’ share in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the total
profit or loss for the year between minority
interests and the equity holders of the
Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority
shareholders exceed their interest in the equity
of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority shareholders,
are charged against the Group’s interest except
to the extent that the minority shareholders
have a binding obligation to, and are able to,
make additional investment to cover the losses.
If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits,
the Group’s interest is allocated all such profits
until the minority shareholders’share of losses
previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

Loans from minority shareholders and other
contractual obligations towards minority
shareholders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in
accordance with Notes 2.17 and 2.18
depending on the nature of the liability.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment losses (Note 2.10(b)). The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
the Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control over its management,
including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method and are initially recognised
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
associates’ net assets, unless they are classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.14).
The consolidated income statement includes
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the associates for the year,
including any impairment loss on goodwill
relating to the investments in associates
recognised for the year (Notes 2.4 and 2.10(b)).
The carrying amount of the Group’s
investments in associates includes the carrying
amount of goodwill (net of any accumulated
impairment losses) identified on acquisition.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
carrying amount of the interest in an associate,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest in the
associate is the carrying amount of the
investment under equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interests in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed,
where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Associates (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments
in associates are stated at cost less impairment
losses (Note 2.10(b)), unless they are classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.14).
The results of associates are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which
operates under a contractual arrangement
between the Group or the Company and other
parties, where the contractual arrangement
establishes that the Group or the Company and
one or more of the other parties share joint
control over the economic activity of the entity.

Investments in jointly controlled entities are
accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method and are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post-acquisition change in
the Group’s share of the jointly controlled
entity’s net assets, unless it is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) (Note 2.14). The
consolidated income statement includes the
Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the jointly controlled entities for the
year, including any impairment loss on
goodwill relating to the investment in jointly
controlled entities recognised for the year
(Notes 2.4 and 2.10(b)). The carrying amount
of the Group's investment in a jointly controlled
entity includes the carrying amount of
goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment
losses) identified on acquisition.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basisof consolidation (Continued)

(€

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

When the Group'’s share of losses exceeds its
carrying amount of the interest in a jointly
controlled entity, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
jointly controlled entity. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity
is the carrying amount of the investment under
equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its jointly
controlled entities are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interests in the jointly controlled
entities, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income
statement. Accounting policies of jointly
controlled entities have been changed, where
necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the
investments in jointly controlled entities are
stated at cost less impairment losses (Note
2.10(b)), unless they are classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) (Note 2.14). The
results of jointly controlled entities are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity over the
Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for
impairment (Note 2.10(b)). In respect of associates
or jointly controlled entities, the carrying amount of
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
interests in the associates or jointly controlled
entities.

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate or a
jointly controlled entity is recognised immediately
in the income statement.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, an associate
or a jointly controlled entity during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the gains or losses on
disposal.
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All property, plant and equipment, including
buildings held for own use, are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any
gain/loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment. As at the balance sheet date, the Group
did not have any cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with that asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of that asset can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during
the period in which they are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined by comparing the net proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognised in “Other
gains — net” in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, over their estimated useful lives
at the following annual rates:

(@) Straight line method

Buildings held for Over the shorter of the
own use unexpired term of the
lease and 30 years

Computer equipment  20% - 25%
(b) Reducing balance method
Furniture, fixturesand  10% - 20%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20% - 25%
An asset’s residual value and useful life are reviewed,
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet

date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s

carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.10(b)).
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Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation or both, and are not
occupied by the companies within the Group.They
comprise land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property on a property-
by-property basis when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it was a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment property is carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices and
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment
property, or for which the market has become less
active, continues to be measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset'’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during
the period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair value and gains or losses on disposal
of an investment property are recognised in the
income statement as part of “Other gains — net”.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7

2.8

Land use rights

Cost of prepaid lease for land use rights is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the duration of the land
use rights or where there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the income statement.
The amortisation of land use rights is capitalized
under the relevant assets when the properties on the
land are under construction.The remaining carrying
amount of the land use rights is recognised as cost
of sales when the relevant properties are sold.

Financial assets
(&) Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition.

The Group recognises financial assets on the
date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular
purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Initial recognition (Continued)

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair

value, which normally will be equal to the

transaction price plus, in case of financial assets

not held at fair value through profit or loss,

transaction costs that are directly attributable

to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Transaction costs on financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss are expensed in the

income statement immediately.

Classification and measurement

(i)

At fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets
held for trading, and those designated at
fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition, but exclude those
investments in equity instruments that
do not have a quoted market price and
whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured.

Financial assets held for trading are
financial assets acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term,
or are part of a portfolio of identified
financial assets that are managed
together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit taking. Derivatives are also
categorized as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges.
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(Continued)

2.8 &RbEE (H) 2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) ABEiAl# (H)

(i) BO-FEZEBRZ SR
(&)

U T BRRN AN BEHER
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(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)

(i)

At fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets are designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial

BRIENEREE ! recognition when:

— REEERIRRE — the assets are managed, evaluated
NEEEE - T and reported internally on a fair
RE2HH ; value basis;

— ZEETEHERK — the designation eliminates or
TR ER K AT REEE significantly reduces an accounting
e TR ; mismatch which would otherwise

arise;

— ZEEBEHmAR — the asset contains an embedded
PTET R > Mk derivative that significantly
ARSTEI AR K modifies the cash flows that would
iR E M IREHIR otherwise be required under the
EEENRESR contract; or
B4

— BBRAXITEIA — the separation of the embedded
REeMEERDH derivatives from the financial assets

ETAWEILR -

is not prohibited.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)

(i)

At fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets under this category are
subsequently carried at fair value. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair
value are included in the income
statement within “Other gains - net” in
the period in which they arise. Upon
disposal, the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying value is
included in the income statement within
“Other gains — net” in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income is
recognised in the income statement as
part of “Other revenues” when the
Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if they are either held for
trading or are expected to be realised
within twelve months from the balance
sheet date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)

(ii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise
when the Group provides money, goods
or services directly to a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivables.

Loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment losses,
if any (Note 2.10(a)).

They are included in current assets,
except for those with maturities greater
than or are expected to be realised after
twelve months from the balance sheet
date which are classified as non-current

assets.
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2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) #H KA (H) (b) Classification and measurement (Continued)

(i) FFZEFEH (iii)  Held-to-maturity
SR HHEREESR Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-
BEES AIEE RN derivative financial assets with fixed or
REEZISANETE determinable payments and fixed
TREE MEERESR maturities that the Group’s management
PHRELOREIFEE has the positive intention and ability to
ZIHAE - hold to maturity.
FEEHHEMEER Held-to-maturity financial assets are
ERRAEAFTE#ERK carried at amortised cost using the
N6 R BRRL (B S 18 (20 effective interest method, less
EHR) SR - impairment losses, if any.
HEREGREAERBE They are included in current assets except
ER BEHBHBEHEER for those with maturities greater than
HEsFBBt+=-M@A twelve months after the balance sheet
E HSBRIERDE date which are classified as non-current
e assets.

(iv) AHLE (iv) Available-for-sale
AHEEEREERF Available-for-sale financial assets are
PTEEREE  ®WET non-derivative financial assets that are
BIERINIF L ER either designated in this category or not

A E M £ =S
Bl - ERETEMERE

classified in any of the other three
categories above. They include financial

HRFENEREE - assets intended to be held for an
BAgEEERBESZ indefinite period of time, but which may
EEYMIBREEEM be sold in response to need for liquidity
HE o or changes in the market environment.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
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2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)

(iv)

Available-for-sale (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are
carried at fair value except for
investments in equity securities that do
not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are carried
at cost less impairment losses, if any (Note
2.10(a)). Unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised directly in the investment
revaluation reserve, except for foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary
items such as debt securities which are
recognised in the income statement.

When the available-for-sale financial
assets are sold, gains or losses on disposal
include the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying value,and
the accumulated fair value adjustments
which are released from the investment
revaluation reserve.

They are included in non-current assets
unless management intends to dispose
of the assets within twelve months from
the balance sheet date.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(©)

(d)

De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based
on their quoted market prices (bid prices) at
the balance sheet date without any deduction
for estimated future selling costs.

If there is no publicly available latest traded
price nor a quoted market price on a
recognised stock exchange or a price from a
broker/dealer for non-exchange traded
financial instruments, or if the market for it is
not active, the fair value of the instrument is
estimated using valuation techniques that
provide a reliable estimate of prices which
could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are
used, estimated future cash flows are based on
management’s best estimates and the discount
rate used is a market rate at the balance sheet
date applicable for an instrument with similar
terms and conditions. Where other pricing
models are used, inputs are based on market
data at the balance sheet date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9 Hedging

The Group does not adopt hedge accounting for
derivative financial instruments which may qualify
as eligible cash flow hedges or fair value hedges.

2.10 Impairment of assets
(&) Financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or obligor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal
payments;
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the Group granting to the issuer or
obligor, for economic or legal reasons
relating to their financial difficulty, a
concession that a lender would not
otherwise consider;

it becoming probable that the issuer or
obligor will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a group of
financial assets since the initial
recognition of those assets, although the
decrease cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial assets in the
group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the group; or

— national or local economic
conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Loans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the
financial asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If,in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed
by adjusting the allowance account.The
amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Held-to-maturity

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on held-to-maturity
financial assets carried at amortised cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between
the financial asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial
asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a held-to-maturity financial
asset has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Held-to-maturity (Continued)

If,in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed
by adjusting the allowance account.The
amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Available-for-sale

In the case of equity securities classified
as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the
securities below their cost is considered
in determining whether the assets are
impaired.

If any such evidence exists for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss - measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment
loss on those financial assets previously
recognised in the income statement - is
removed from equity and recognised in
the income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(@) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)  Available-for-sale (Continued)

For unquoted available-for-sale equity
securities that are carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the present
value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset.

If,in a subsequent period, the fair value
of a debt instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the income statement,
the impairment loss is reversed through
the income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the
income statement on equity securities
are not reversed through the income
statement. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised
directly in equity.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(b)

Other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is an indication that a non-
financial asset may be impaired. Assets that
have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are at least tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

If any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for a non-financial asset is
required, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.The recoverable amount of an asset
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e.a cash-generating unit).
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)

(b)

Other non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in income
statement for the amount by which the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

Previously recognised impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed in subsequent
periods. A previously recognised impairment
loss on other assets is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of an asset,
however not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any amortisation or
depreciation), had no impairment loss been
recognised against the asset in prior periods.
Reversal of impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it
arises.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(c) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, in respect of the first six months of
the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition and reversal criteria as it
would at the end the financial year (Notes
2.10(a) and (b)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill, available-for-sale
equity securities and unquoted equity
securities carried at cost are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

2.11 Insurance contracts classification

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance
risk.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk. The Group defines
significant insurance risk as the possibility of having
to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event
that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable
if the insured event did not occur.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts

(a)

Recognition and measurement

Insurance contracts are classified depending
on the duration of risk and whether or not the
terms and conditions are fixed.

Short-term insurance contracts

These contracts are property and casualty
insurance contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the
Group’s customers against the risk of causing
harm to third parties as a result of their
legitimate activities. Damages covered include
both contractual and non-contractual events.
The typical protection offered is designed for
employers who become legally liable to pay
compensation to injured employees
(employers’ liability) and for individual and
business customers who become liable to pay
compensation to a third party for bodily harm
or property damage (public liability).

Property insurance contracts mainly
compensate the Group’s customers for damage
suffered to their properties or for the value of
property lost. Customers who undertake
commercial activities on their premises could
also receive compensation for the loss of
earnings caused by the inability to use the
insured properties in their business activities
(business interruption cover).
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(a)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

For all these contracts, premiums are
recognised as revenue (earned premiums)
proportionally over the period of coverage.The
portion of premium received on in-force
contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the
balance sheet date is reported as the unearned
premium liability. Premiums are shown before
deduction of commission.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are
charged to income statement as incurred
based on the estimated liability for
compensation owed to contract holders or
third parties damaged by the contract holders.
They include direct and indirect claims
settlement costs and arise from events that
have occurred up to the balance sheet date
even if they have not yet been reported to the
Group. The Group does not discount its
liabilities for unpaid claims. Liabilities for
unpaid claims are estimated using the input of
assessments for individual cases reported to
the Group and statistical analyses for the claims
incurred but not reported, and to estimate the
expected ultimate cost of more complex claims
that may be affected by external factors (such
as court decisions).
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(b)

(€

Deferred acquisition costs (“ DAC”)

Commissions and other acquisition costs that
vary with and are related to securing new
contracts and renewing existing contracts are
capitalised as an intangible asset, DAC. All other
costs are recognised as expenses when
incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised
over the life of the contracts as premium is
earned.

Liability adequacy test

At each balance sheet date, liability adequacy
tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of
the contract liabilities net of related DAC assets.
In performing these tests, current best
estimates of future contractual cash flows and
claims handling and administration expenses
are used. Any deficiency is immediately
charged to income statement initially by
writing off DAC and by subsequently
establishing a provision for losses arising from
liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk
provision). Any DAC written off as a result of
this test cannot subsequently be reinstated.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(d)

Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with
reinsurers under which the Group is
compensated for losses on one or more
contracts issued by the Group and that meet
the classification requirements for insurance
contracts in Note 2.11 are classified as
reinsurance contracts held. Contracts that do
not meet these classification requirements are
classified as financial assets. Insurance
contracts entered into by the Group under
which the contract holder is another insurer
(inwards reinsurance) are included with
“Insurance contracts” on the balance sheet.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled
under its reinsurance contracts held are
recognised as reinsurance assets. These assets
consist of short-term balances due from
reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables
that are dependent on the expected claims and
benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from
or due to reinsurers are measured consistently
with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in
accordance with the terms of each reinsurance
contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily
premiums payable for reinsurance contracts
and are recognised as an expense over the
terms of reinsurance contracts and are
included with “Insurance payable” on the
balance sheet.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(d)

(€)

Reinsurance contracts held (Continued)

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for
impairment on a regular basis. If there is
objective evidence that the reinsurance asset
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount of the reinsurance asset to its
recoverable amount and recognises that
impairment loss in the income statement.The
Group gathers the objective evidence that a
reinsurance asset is impaired using the same
process adopted for financial assets held at
amortised cost. The impairment loss is also
calculated following the same method used for
those financial assets. These processes are
described in Note 2.10(a)(i).

Receivables and payables related to insurance
contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when
due.These include amounts due to and from
agents, brokers and insurance contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount of the insurance receivable
accordingly and recognises that impairment
loss in the income statement. The Group
gathers the objective evidence that an
insurance receivable is impaired using the
same process adopted for loans and
receivables. The impairment loss is also
calculated under the same method used for
those financial assets. These processes are
described in Note 2.10(a)(i).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(f) Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Group to
sell (usually damaged) property acquired in
settling a claim (salvage). The Group may also
have the right to pursue third parties for
payment of some or all costs (subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as
an allowance in the measurement of the
insurance liability for claims, and salvage
property is recognised in other assets when the
liability is settled. The allowance is the amount
that can reasonably be recovered from the
disposal of the property.

Subrogation reimbursements are also
considered as an allowance in the
measurement of the insurance liability for
claims and are recognised in other assets when
the liability is settled. The allowance is the
assessment of the amount that can be
recovered from the action against the liable
third party.

2.13 Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale is included
as current asset and stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to estimated sales proceeds
of the properties sold in the ordinary course of
business less costs to complete development and
estimated selling expenses.

Development cost of properties comprises
construction costs, amortisation of land use rights,
borrowing costs and professional fees incurred
during the development period. On completion, the
development cost of properties is transferred to
completed properties held for sale.
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214 Fe e B R e B & & (i 2.14 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for
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A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if the carrying amount is recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through a continuing use and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group)
is brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification.Then, on
initial classification as held for sale and until disposal,
the non-current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the accounts of the
Group are concerned are deferred tax assets,
financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and
associates) and investment properties.These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured
in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in
Note 2.

As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Other debtors

Other debtors are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
in hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash
investments with original maturity of three months or
less from the date of investment less bank overdrafts.

2.17 Financial liabilities — Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to the
borrowers. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value
is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the balance sheet date.

2.18 Financial liabilities — Creditors and payables

Creditors and payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with Note 2.19, trade and
other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2.10 B ER A HE 2.19 Financial guarantee liabilities
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Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e.the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
financial statements at fair value on the date that the
guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised. Any changes in
the liabilities relating to financial guarantees are
taken to the income statement.

2.20 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is
not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.
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(Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain events not wholly within the control
of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When the
inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

Where the Group expects a provision to be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at closing
exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges or qualifying net investment hedges. As
at the balance sheet date, the Group did not
have any cash flow hedges or net investment
hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities, such as equity
instruments held at fair value through profit or
loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary items, such as equity investments
classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the investment revaluation
reserve in equity.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(©)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assetsand liabilities items in their balance
sheet are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates, unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. In such case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions; and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

Exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are taken directly to
shareholders’equity. When a foreign operation
is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of that foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.

2.23 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in income statement
except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case they are
recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused
tax credits.
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Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that
will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward.The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilized.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax
purposes, the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilized. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on the same taxable
entity.

2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised on the following basis
provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount can be
measured reliably:

(@) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income.

(b) Rental income from investment properties

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in the income statement
in equal installments over the period covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the income statement as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

(c) Management fees

Management fees are recognised upon the
provision of services.

(d) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the

shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(e) Insurance contracts

The basis of recognition of insurance revenue
is detailed in Note 2.12.

2.26 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalised as
being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

2.27 Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (including those for leasehold
land) net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the lease periods.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short term empl oyee benefits

Salaries and annual bonuses are paid or
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. When
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Retirement benefit costs

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
These pension plans are defined contribution
schemes which the Group pays fixed
contributions and has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the
fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee
services rendered in the current and prior
periods.

The Group's contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due
and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior
to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
future payments is available.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28 Employee benefits (Continued)

(€

(d)

(€)

Employee |eaves entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An
accrual is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Share-based compensation

A jointly controlled entity of the Group
operates an equity compensation plan under
which its shares are granted to eligible
employees for services rendered.The fair value
of the employee services received in exchange
of the shares granted net of any consideration
received is recognised as an expense.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either terminating the
employment of current employees according to
a detailed formal plan or providing termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.Benefits falling
due more than twelve months after balance
sheet date are discounted to present value.
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A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products
or services (business segments), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segments as the primary reporting format and
geographical segments as the secondary reporting
format for the purposes of these consolidated
financial statements.

Segment assets consist primarily of investment
properties, leasehold land and land use rights, loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
insurance related assets and operating cash.
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and
exclude items such as taxation, accruals for corporate
overheads and corporate borrowings. Unallocated
items represent corporate overheads. Capital
expenditure comprises additions to property, plant
and equipment (Note 15), investment properties
(Note 16) and leasehold land and land use rights
(Note 17). Intra-segment loans and advances
employed by the Group as part of the Group's
funding and capital allocation and the resulting
interest income and expenses are excluded from the
determination of segment assets, liabilities and
results.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales
are based on the country in which the customers are
located. Total assets and capital expenditure are
based on the country in which the assets are located.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the equity holders of the

Company is recognised as a liability in the period in

which the dividends are approved for distribution.

2.31 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidation financial

statements, parties are considered to be related to

the Group if:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
(joint control) the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial
and operating decisions, or vice versa;

the Group and the party are subject to
common control or common significant
influence;

the Group is an associate of the party or a joint
venture in which the party is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
significant shareholders, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity
under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred toin (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.31 Related parties (Continued)

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s business activities expose it to a variety
of financial risks including insurance risk, market risk
(including currency risk, price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.This note summarises
the Group’s exposure to these risks, as well as its
objectives, policies and processes for managing and
the methods used to measure these risks.

The Group's investment policy is to prudently invest its
funds in a manner which satisfies the Group’s liquidity
requirements and generates optimal returns to the
Group within a manageable risk level. The Group's overall
risk management focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s performance.

The Board of Directors, representing the interest of
shareholders, is the highest decision making
authority of the Group and has the ultimate
responsibility for risk management. The Board has
adopted procedures for evaluating and approving
significant investment decisions. Given the nature of
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities, their risk
exposures are monitored by the Group primarily on
a qualitative basis.

The General Manager (“GM”) is responsible for
managing the Group’s various types of risks,
approving detailed risk management policies, and
approving material risk exposures or transactions
within his authority delegated by the Board of
Directors.The other members of the management
team assist the GM in fulfilling his responsibilities for
the day-to-day management of risks.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

The Group has put in place internal control system,
including establishment of Group’s organization
structure that sets adequately clear lines of authority
and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines
also provide sufficient independence of the control
functions from the business areas, as well as
adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organization which helps to promote appropriate
internal control environment.

(&) Insurance risk

The Group issues contracts that transfer
insurance risk. This section summarises these
risks and the way the Group manages such
risks.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the
possibility that the insured event occurs and
the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting
claim. By the very nature of an insurance
contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the
theory of probability is applied to pricing and
provisioning, the principal risk that the Group
faces under its insurance contracts is that the
actual claims exceed the carrying amount of
the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims and
benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and
amount of claims will vary from year to year
from the level established using statistical
techniques.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Insurance risk (Continued)

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of
similar insurance contracts, the smaller the
relative variability about the expected outcome
will be.In addition, a more diversified portfolio is
less likely to be affected across the board by a
change in any subset of the portfolio.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include
lack of risk diversification in terms of type and
amount of risk, geographical location and type
of industry covered.

(i) Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can
be affected by several factors. The most
significant are the increasing level of
awards for the damage suffered and the
increase in number of cases coming to
court that were inactive or latent for a
long period of time. Estimated inflation
is also a significant factor due to the long
period typically required to settle these
cases.

The Group manages these risks through
its underwriting strategy, adequate
reinsurance arrangements and claims
handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to
ensure that the underwritten risks are
well diversified in terms of type and
amount of risk, industry and geography.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Insurancerisk (Continued)

(i)

Frequency and severity of claims
(Continued)

Underwriting limits are in place to
enforce appropriate risk selection criteria.
For example, the Group has the right to
re-price, cancel or not to renew a contract,
it can impose deductibles and it has the
right to reject the payment of fraudulent
claim.Insurance contracts also entitle the
Group to pursue third parties for
payment of some or all costs
(subrogation). Unless the legislation
requires, the Group’s strategy limits the
total exposure of any individual policy to
a certain amounts.

The reinsurance arrangements include
facultative, proportional treaties and
excess of loss coverage.The effect of such
reinsurance arrangements is that the
Group should not suffer total net
insurance losses more than the
prescribed amount. In addition to the
overall reinsurance program, additional
reinsurance protection for any individual
risk will be arranged when necessary.

The concentration of insurance risk
before and after reinsurance by territory
in relation to type of insurance accepted
is summarised below, with reference to
the carrying amount of the insurance
liabilities (gross and net of reinsurance)
arising from insurance contracts:
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

1R B () Insurance risk (Continued)
(i) BENEEREERE (i)  Frequency and severity of claims
(#&) (Continued)
2007
-
EREE  EORRE
RE General  Accident -1 ok
Motor liability  and health Others Total
E¥Frn  AETn  AETn  AETn RETn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8 Gross
BHRRAY Short term insurance contracts
B Hong Kong 51,664 2,190 15,871 601 70,326
M Macao 217 530 434 2,546 3727
RIREREE £8 Total insurance liabilities, gross 51,881 2,720 16,305 3,147 74,053
58 Net
RHRRAY Short term insurance contracts
B Hong Kong 45,023 2,190 15,871 489 63,573
M Macao M 507 355 2,034 3,107
RRECLE 38 Total insurance liabilities, net 45,234 2,697 16,226 2523 66,680




3 AR R R () 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 MEBEEEFEE (#H)

(@) fRbamE b ()

Insurance risk (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) BENEEREERE (i)  Frequency and severity of claims
(#&) (Continued)
2006
&
ERER  BOREE
RE General Accident Hth &3
Motor liability  and health Others Total
B¥%Trn  AETn  BETT BETT BT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
2 Gross
RHRRAY Short term insurance contracts
B Hong Kong 60340 300 5% YT
M Macao 807 207 105 2,466 3,585
RBELAE 25 Total insurance liabilities, gross 61,147 3247 20,640 3,264 88,298
58 Net
BHRRAY Short term insurance contracts
& Hong Kong 51,157 2,861 20,535 557 75,110
M Macao 748 178 36 1,888 2850
RBELAE 35 Total insurance liabilities, net 51,905 3,039 20571 2445 77,960
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Insurance risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of
future claims payments

Claims on insurance contracts are
payable on a claim-occurrence basis.The
Group is liable for all insured events that
occurred during the term of the contract
even if the loss is discovered after the end
of the contract term. As a result, liability
claims are settled over a long period of
time and a larger element of claims
provision relates to incurred but not
reported claims (“IBNR”).There are several
variables that affect the amount and
timing of cash flows from these contracts.
These mainly relate to the inherent risks
by individual contract holders and the
risk management procedures adopted.
The compensation paid on these
contracts is the monetary awards granted
for bodily injury suffered.Such awards are
lump-sum payments that are calculated
as the present value of the lost of
earnings and rehabilitation expenses that
the injured party will incur as a result of
the accident.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Insurance risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of
future claims payments (Continued)

The estimated cost of claims includes
direct expenses to be incurred in settling
claims, net of the expected subrogation
value and other recoveries. The Group
takes all reasonable steps to ensure that
it has appropriate information regarding
its claims exposures. However given the
uncertainty in establishing claims
provisions, it is likely that the final
outcome will prove to be different from
the original liability established. The
liability for these contracts comprise a
provision for IBNR, a provision for
reported claims not yet paid and a
provision for unexpired risks at the
balance sheet date.

In calculating the estimated cost of
unpaid claims (both reported or not), the
Group’s estimation techniques are a
combination of loss-ratio-based
estimates (where the loss ratio is defined
as the ratio between the ultimate cost of
insurance claims and insurance
premiums earned in a particular financial
year in relation to such claims) and an
estimate based upon actual claim
experience using predetermined
formulae where greater weight is given
to actual claims experience as time
passes.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Insurance risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of
future claims payments (Continued)

The estimation of IBNR is generally
subject to a greater degree of uncertainty
than the estimation of the cost of settling
claims already notified to the Group,
where information about the claim event
is available.In estimating the amount of
IBNR which makes reasonable provisions
for the claims and the unexpired risks, it
is necessary to project future claims cost
and associated claims expenses and
simulates the outcomes of claims
liabilities using models.These models are
simplified representations of many legal,
social and economic forces and may not
be entirely appropriate for the types of
insurance business being analysed. It is
certain that actual future claim and
claims expenses will not develop exactly
as projected and may vary significantly
from the projections.

In estimating the liability for the cost of
reported claims not yet paid the Group
considers any information available from
loss adjusters and information on the cost
of settling claims with similar
characteristics in previous periods. Large
claims are assessed on a case-by-case
basis or projected separately in order to
allow for the possible distortive effect of
their development and incidence on the
rest of the portfolio.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of
future claims payments (Continued)

Where possible, the Group adopts
multiple techniques to estimate the
required level of provisions.This provides
a greater understanding of the trends
inherent in the experience being
projected. The projections given by the
various methodologies also assist in
estimating the range of possible
outcomes. The most appropriate
estimation technique is selected taking
into account the characteristics of the
business class and the extent of the
development of each accident year.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from
movements in market rates and prices. The
Group’s market risk arises from trading position
in the financial instruments taken from
proprietary trading which is subject to mark-
to-market valuation.The risk includes potential
losses arising from changes in foreign
exchange, interest rates and equity prices.

The Group’s risk management objective is to
enhance shareholder value by maintaining risk
exposures within acceptable limits.The Group’s
control of market risk is based on restricting
individual operations to trading within a list of
permissible instruments authorised by the
Board to ensure all risks arising are thoroughly
identified, properly measured and adequately
controlled.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss
due to adverse movements in foreign
exchange rates relating to investments
denominated in foreign currencies.The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operations denominated in
various currencies, primarily with respect
to Renminbi (“RMB”).

In respect of receivables and payables
held in currencies other than the
functional currency of the operations to
which they relate, the Group ensures that
the net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level, by buying and selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short-term imbalances.

The Group's borrowings are denominated
in the functional currency of the entity
taking out the loan or, in the case of
entities whose functional currency is
Hong Kong dollars, in either Hong Kong
dollar or the United States dollar. Given
this, management does not expect that
there will be any significant currency risk
associated with the Group’s borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s
and the Company’s exposure at the
balance sheet date to currency risk
arising from recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

2007 2006
AREFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEE The Group

1t 1 BR X Other debtors 12,399 165
RBEeRBITER Cash and bank balances 111,539 234,887
HwESRARETER Other creditors and accruals (1,865) (19,911)
Bl e Deposits received (70,000 (45,000)

BRHERELHEN Deposits received for disposal of
FRBEENES non-current asset held-for-sale (8,000) =
44,073 170,141
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

2007 2006
AREFTT AREFR
RMB’000 RMB'000
FAT The Company

H it fE U BR 58 Other debtors 12,390 165
BERRTER Cash and bank balances 110,299 233,032
HiwEARTRESER Other creditors and accruals (1,862) (19,911)
B¢ A Deposits received (70,000) (45,000)

ERHLERELEN Deposits received for disposal of
FRBEENES non-current asset held-for-sale (8,000) =
42,827 168,286

TRIIRAEBREE
AEEERHBNGE
WRESBAZEARR
HAEBHRTRIEF
(RRBEF) RFEHE
BmEMARIRD EER
REFE -

The following table indicates the
approximate change in the Group's profit
after taxation (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity
in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure

at the balance sheet date.




3 A% ke B (%) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 WMEEEEE () 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) 5 M B () (b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) E¥EE GE) (i) Currency risk (Continued)
2007 2006
HkRBE Hitn HIRBE HER
ShERBRE HRRRE EhAm HEFBE aFRRE Hitam
L#/ (F&) pgilliop2 ] BoMEE LH/(TH RS BamzE
Increase/ Effect on Effect Increase/ Effect on Effect
(decrease) profit after on other (decrease) profit after on other
in foreign taxation and components in foreign taxation and components
exchange rate retained profits of equity  exchangerate retained profits of equity
=304 BETT BETFT BAk BETT BETT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000
KXEE  The Group
AR Renminbi 5 2,353 — 5 8,475 —
(5) (2,353) - (5 (8,475) —
AAT  The Company
AR®  Renminbi 5 2,286 - 5 8,383 =
(5) (2,286) = (5) (8,383) =
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
foreign currency rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been
applied to each of the Group entities’
exposure to currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and
that all other variables, in particular
interest rate, remain constant.

The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange
rate over the period until the next
balance sheet date. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between
the Hong Kong dollar and the United
States dollar would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of the United States dollar
against other currencies. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit after
taxation and equity measured in the
respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet
date for presentation purposes. The
analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2006.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
on investments held by the Group
classified on the balance sheet as
available-for-sale financial assets or as
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Group’s equity investments held for
trading are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy or sell
trading securities are based on the
performance of individual securities
compared to that of the index and the
Group’s liquidity needs. Investments held
in the available-for-sale portfolio are
listed on the Stock Exchange of Shanghai
and have been chosen based on their
long term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance
against expectations.

The following table indicates the
approximate change in the Group’s profit
after taxation (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity
in response to reasonably possible
changes in the relevant stock market
index for listed investments to which the
Group and the Company have significant
exposure at the balance sheet date.
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3 WAEE R B () 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 WMEEEEE () 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) 5 M B () (b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) 1EEERE (&) (i) Price risk (Continued)
2007 2006
BB Hign v HEx%

HREREY  EHRRE ApEn HEERZE  EARRE Eft&H
H#/(TH)  BAMBE  BANEE LR/ (TR aNNZE  HonyE

Increase/ Effect on Effect Increase/ Effect on Effect
(decrease) in profit after on other (decrease) in profit after on other

therelevant  taxationand  components the relevant taxation and components

risk variance  retained profits of equity risk variance  retained profits of equity
Bl BEFT BEFT At BETT BETT
% HKSO0  HKSO00 % HES 00 HKS 000
k.31 The Group
IH#k&EZ  Stock marketindexin
BiEE respect of listed
investments
HEEY Hang Seng Index 5 102 = 5 5 —
(5) (102) = (5) (52) =
EBBA%Z  Shanghai Composite Index 5 - 33,405 5 = 1925
(5 - (33,405) (5) — (1,925)
X4 The Company
LH#REZ  Stock marketindexin
B respect of listed
investments
EEEY Hang Seng Index 5 1 — 5 7 =
(3) (1) = (5) (0 =
LSGEEE  Shanghai Composite Index 5 = 33,405 5 = 1,925
(5 - (33,405) m - ',9|25) s
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the
reasonably possible changes in the stock
market index had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to equity price risk in existence
at that date. It is also assumed that the
fair values of the Group’s equity
investments would change in accordance
with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index, that none of
the Group’s available-for-sale investments
would be considered impaired as a result
of a reasonably possible decrease in the
relevant stock market index, and that all
other variables remain constant. The
stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible
changes in the relevant stock market
index over the period until the next
annual balance sheet date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2006.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rate. Cash flow interest rate risk
is the risk that future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest
rates.
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3 BB R () 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 BA%E B H R () 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) 77 53 ) B () (b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) BEHERAFEFE (iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
BB (&) (Continued)
AEENEEEEREA The Group’s interest bearing assets and
BFEBERITERR liabilities mainly comprise bank deposits

FERITER A&
EEERESREFNZRE
b o REBETEFEBSK
HEEEREBENIH
B 445 A 72 2R g B H )
BERE  WEEDS
MRESUEREERE
TR 2= 48 B 355 B B 4 1
HEFE S FE o

TREINAREERA R
AREERNEERE
BRI R - BEFE
EERTREBENER
RE (TREFEEY
RBEETHHRE) -

and bank borrowings denominated in
floating rates which expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risks. The Group
manages these risks primarily through
maintaining the maturity profile of these
assets and liabilities within a short period
and monitoring the market interest rate
movements so that the Group can react
accordingly when there are adverse
interest rate movements.

The following table details the interest
rate profile of the Group’s and the
Company'’s net borrowing at the balance
sheet date. For this purpose the Group
defines “net borrowings” as being

interest-bearing financial liabilities less
interest-bearing investments (excluding
cash held for short term working capital
purposes).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(iii) ~ Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

BB (48) (Continued)
2007 2006
BRHE G YIRS
Effective &8 Effective x|
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
Al BETT BAl BEFT
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
XEBEREXAT  TheGroupand
the Company
FENEEN Variable rate borrowings
BITEMN Bank borrowings 5.3 184,010 55 63,874
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
(Continued)

At 31st December 2007, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group’s profit after taxation
and retained profits by approximately
HKS$1.37 million (2006: HKS1.11 million).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rate had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date.The
100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next
annual balance sheet date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2006.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the
risk that a customer or counterparty will be
unable to or unwilling to fulfill its repayment
obligations for amounts due to the Group.The
Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
insurance debtors and other receivables.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
screening the counterparties, on-going
monitoring and acquiring collateral from
counterparties.

Insurance receivables are required to meet the
Group's established financial requirements and
provide third party guarantees to the Group
when it considered necessary.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking into account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet after
deducting any impairment allowance. The
Group does not provide any guarantees which
would exposure the Group or the Company to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
insurance receivables are set out in Note 23.

As at 31st December 2007, bank balances were
placed with reputable financial institutions
with diversification.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will
encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its
cash flow needs or commitments. Liquidity risk
may result from either inability to sell financial
assets quickly at their fair values, a counter-
party failing on repayment of a contractual
obligation or an insurance liability falling due
for payment earlier than expected.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash, readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet
date of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the balance
sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and
the Company can be required to pay:
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for equity
holders of the Company and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.This
ratio is calculated as net debts divided by total net
assets. For this purpose the Group defines net debts
as total debts, which includes all borrowings and
advances as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet. Total net assets comprises all components of
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

During 2007, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2006, was to maintain the gearing
ratio within 25%. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to equity holders of the Company,
issue new shares, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The gearing ratio at 31st December 2007 and 2006
were as follows:

AEE The Group
2007 2006
BT IT BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
WIS EFI BT Total borrowings and advances 184,010 63,874
EEFE Total net assets 2,632,338 1,694,672
BXEREEE Gearing ratio 7.0% 3.8%

EXREBLENENEERAR
200751231 BV REBERITER
SRR REAFRIEEURITE
MBS BT RERRITERE
¥6,4008 T (FERE33) FTEL

RIEEBREEEEETANER
RE > AAF—REMBLE @ BEfE
REBERAT (AERE]D @ FR
BURBR A BMRGD) NRE - #iIFH
KAREEFEREDBY2,000
Br -  AEEBRRE  BERE

AR E S IR FAARNKRESR
BITHRMOFAAR - BREBEER
BRRBEMEFRTRAMEREE Wﬁ
XERE T REEREREMNE
LABR ] ©

The increase in the gearing ratio resulted primarily
from the increase in bank loans outstanding at
31st December 2007 due to drawdown of bank loans
of HK$185 million and the repayment of the bank
loan of HK$64 million during the year (Note 33).

Pursuant to the capital requirements imposed by the
Office of the Commissioner of Insurance in Hong
Kong, a subsidiary of the Company, Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited (“MXIC”), should maintain at least
HK$20 million in its adjusted net assets calculated
according to the requirements set out in the
Insurance Ordinance. In order to fulfill these
requirements, MXIC may adjust the dividend paid to
the Company or issue new shares to the Company. If
MXIC cannot maintain the capital requirements
imposed, the Commissioner of Insurance may place
restrictions on the operations of MXIC.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATESAND
JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in these
financial statements. The application of assumptions and
estimates means that any changes of them, either due to
changes of management’s judgement or the evolvement
of the actual circumstances, would cause the Group’s
financial position and results to differ.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
believes that the assumptions and estimates that have
been made in the preparation of these financial
statements are appropriate and that the financial
statements therefore present fairly the Group’s financial
position and results in all material respects.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months are
discussed below.

(@) Valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group reviews periodically to assess the fair
value of its investments in 72 million shares
(“Huaneng Shares”) of Huaneng Power International,
Inc. (“Huaneng”), a major available-for-sale financial
asset held by the Group in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.8(iv). As at 31st
December 2007, the fair value of Huaneng Shares
was estimated with reference to the closing bid price
of Huaneng’s A-Shares (Note 21).
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(b) B R T fiit

(b) Estimate of fair value of investment properties
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The best evidence of fair value of investment
properties held by the Group is current prices in an
active market for similar lease or other contracts. In
the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of reasonable
fair value estimates. In making its judgement, the
Group considers information including current prices
in an active market for properties of different nature,
condition or location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences
or recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices. As at 31st
December 2007, the fair value of the Group'’s
investment properties was HK$90.51 million (Note
16).
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATESAND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes.There are transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made. As at 31st December 2007,
the Group had deferred tax liabilities of HK$6.75
million (Note 34). Should the actual applicable tax
rate differ by 1%, the deferred income tax liabilities
would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$0.29 million. During the year, the Group had
partially disposed of its available-for-sale financial
assets and the local tax authority of Fujian Province
had granted tax exemption on the capital gain
realised on disposal of such financial assets.
Therefore, the Group had written back the provision
for deferred tax of HK$47.34 million in relation to the
fair value gain of the available-for-sale financial
assets during the year.
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATESAND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Ciritical accounting estimates and judgement of
jointly controlled entities

(i)

Xiamen International Bank and its subsidiaries
(“ XIB Group”)

The Group’s major jointly controlled financial
institution, XIB Group, is principally engaged in
the banking business (Note 19).In converting
its statutory financial statements prepared
under generally accepted accounting
principles in PRC for the Group’s equity
accounting purposes in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.3(c), certain
critical accounting estimates and judgement
have been applied as described below:

—  Fairvalue of derivatives

The fair values of derivative contracts
held by XIB Group that are not traded in
active markets are estimated primarily
based on broker quotes. Management
assesses the reasonableness of the broker
quotes with reference to changes in
market parameters from the inception
date of the contract and the price and
terms of other contracts recently entered
into by XIB Group, and makes judgement
as to whether such broker quotes are
indicative of the fair value of the
derivative contracts at the balance sheet
date.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATESAND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Ciritical accounting estimates and judgement of
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(i)  Xiamen International Bank and its subsidiaries
(* XIB Group™) (Continued)

Impairment allowances on loans and
advances

As at the balance sheet date, the loan
portfolios of XIB Group were reviewed to
determine if they have suffered any
impairment loss in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note
2.10(a)(i). Judgement is made as to
whether there is any objective evidence
that a loan is impaired, including where
there exists observable data that the
payment status of borrowers has
adversely changed. If management has
determined, based on their judgement,
that objective evidence for impairment
exists, expected future cash flows are
estimated based on observable data
obtained and impairment is assessed in
accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy.The quantum of the impairment is
also impacted by the collateral value and
this in turn, may be discounted in certain
circumstances to recognise the impact of
forced sale. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash
flows are reviewed periodically to reduce
any difference between loss estimates
and the actual loss experience.
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Valuation of available-for-sale financial
assets

As at 31st December 2007, the fair value
of an unlisted available-for-sale equity
investment held by XIB Group has been
estimated using a market comparison
approach by an independent
professional valuer.Based on the market
ratio (e.g. price/earning and price/book
ratios) of a number of listed companies
engaged in similar industries as the
investee and the investee’s historical
financial information, management
makes estimates and judgement on the
appropriate adjustments required to
reflect the circumstances of the investee,
including the liquidity discount
applicable to the shares of the investee
as compared to those of a listed company,
for fair value estimation purposes. As at
31st December 2007, the Group's
attributable share of the fair value gain
(before deferred tax adjustment) arising
from this investment, which is accounted
for in the investment revaluation reserve,
was HK$92.61 million. To the extent that
the liquidity discount rate differs by +/-
1%, the Group's investment revaluation
reserve (before tax) will decrease and
increase by HK$1.59 million respectively.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATESAND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Ciritical accounting estimates and judgement of
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(i)  Xiamen International Bank and its subsidiaries
(* XIB Group™) (Continued)

Equity compensation plan

A subsidiary of XIB Group operates an
equity compensation plan (the “Plan”),
under which eligible employees are
offered shares of the subsidiary at a
consideration determined based on the
subsidiary’s net asset value. Pursuant to
the terms of the Plan, should the
subsidiary go for an initial public offering
(“IPO"), XIB Group would purchase the
shares from the employees at a price
based on the higher of the then IPO price
or a multiple of the net asset value of the
subsidiary. Management assesses that as
at 31st December 2007, XIB Group had no
legal or constructive obligations to re-
acquire the shares granted under the Plan
at the abovementioned price. Should
such obligations exist at 31st December
2007, the Group’s share of the results of
XIB Group for the year ended
31st December 2007 would decrease by
at least HK$16.65 million.
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATESAND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Ciritical accounting estimates and judgement of
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(if)

Min Faith Investments Limited and its
subsidiaries (* MFL Group”)

MFL Group is principally engaged in the
manufacturing and distribution of digital
instruments and auto-equipments, and
investing in strategic investments for income
and capital appreciation purposes (Note 19).In
preparing its statutory financial statements
under HKFRSs, certain critical accounting
estimates and judgement have been applied
as described below:

— Valuation of available-for-sale equity
investments

As at 31st December 2007, various
unlisted available-for-sale equity
investments held by MFL Group has been
measured at their original cost of HK$18.7
million. According to the Group’s
preliminary assessment of the fair value
of these equity investments using
different valuation techniques, the
variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant and the
probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair
value, these equity investments are
precluded from measuring at fair value.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATESAND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Fair value of financial assets and financial

liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active market (such as trading and available-for-sale
securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each balance sheet
date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments are used for long-term debt.
Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash
flows, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate
their fair value. The fair value of financial liabilities
for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for
similar financial instruments.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

In the directors’ opinion, the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Group
approximate their carrying values as at the balance
sheet date.
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5 TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL

INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in financial services,
property development and investment, toll road

investment, industrial instrument manufacturing and
investment holding businesses.

income and management fee income.

recognised during the year is as follows:

The Group's turnover represents gross insurance premiums,
insurance brokerage commission, dividend income from
available-for-sale financial assets, bank interest income, rental

The amount of each significant category of revenue

2007 2006
BEFIT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
¥ Turnover
EREBEWA Gross insurance premiums 48,437 55,053
R &AW A Insurance brokerage commission 989 1,380
AHHESRERE Dividend income from available-

i% 2 U A for-sale financial assets 30,996 14,806
RITFERAEWA Interest income from bank deposits 6,520 9,773
BREYEHRS WA Rental income from investment

properties 5,828 5,454
EBE Management fees 120 120
92,890 86,586
RMHIRES Movement in unearned insurance
premiums 6,760 (376)
BRESEEBRREA Reinsurance premiums ceded and
R MR E S reinsurers’ share of movement in
unearned insurance premiums (9,172) (7,343)
Hauk A Other revenues
HEEEN EmKRE Dividend income from listed equity

EEREWA securities held for trading 31 80
EZFHEFELD Interest income from unlisted held-

BEEF B2 WA to-maturity debt securities — 125
Hith Others 1,816 1,940

1,847 2,145
PN L] Total revenues 92,325 81,012
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is presented as the primary reporting format
pursuant to the Group’s internal financial reporting system.

Business segments

The Group’s activities comprise the following major
business segments:

Financial services — underwriting of general insurance,
insurance brokerage, investing in
banking business and trading in
securities for short term profit

Property development —  development and sale of residential
and investment properties, leasing of investment
properties for rentals and investing
in properties to gain from the long
term appreciation in their values

Toll road investment ~ — investing in toll road projects in
Mainland China
Industrial instrument ~ — investing in manufacturers and
manufacturing distributors of digital
instruments
Investment holding — investing in strategic investments and
and others other assets for income and capital

appreciation purposes
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical segments

The Group operates in three principal economic
environments, namely Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macao.The Group’s insurance and investment activities are
mainly conducted in Hong Kong whilst the Group’s
property development activities and the major investees
are located in Mainland China.The Group also carries out
certain insurance underwriting activities in Macao.

In presenting geographical segmental information,
segment revenue is presented based on the geographical
location of customers or the investee. Segment assets and

capital expenditure are presented based on the
geographical location of the assets.
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6 HAhlat — FH

6 OTHER GAINS— NET

2007 2006
BEFTT BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
RAFEEBIERIER Fair value gains on listed equity
B LR REE S securities measured at fair
AT EK SR value through profit or loss 260 923
REVEEMLAFERE Fair value gains on revaluation of
(FE*%16) investment properties (Note 16) 13,799 5,807
HEHHKESHMEEWSE  Gain on disposal of available-for-
FEE21) sale financial assets (Note 21) 49,655 —
HE—ME QR KE Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
(FEE38(b) (Note 38(b)) — 1,979
B 5 U E 5 Net exchange gains 9,345 5,647
Hith Others 58 —
73,117 14,356

7 WRECEHEAMBEESEEEN 7

NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

& #HH AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS
2007 2006
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS'000
REEEFEEEREEEFEE (@) Netinsurance claims incurred on

insurance business (a) 16,361 15,630

REBEXRELENHLSEM () Commission expenses incurred on
insurance business (b) 23,177 21,209
39,538 36,839
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NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(@ Net insurance claims incurred on insurance

business
2007
8 BiRR BH
Gross Reinsurance Net
BEFT - EBETT AE¥Tn
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FEERERBLAAE Current year claims and loss
B adjustment expenses 17,257 (42) 17,215
TEERERBLARAER (Run-off savings)/additional
BRANEEER cost for prior years' claims
Fl&) EBIEAE and loss adjustment expenses (1,596) 348 (1,248)
EREEBRERNEE (Decrease)/increase in claims
(R /1 hn incurred but not reported (6) 7 1
RmEE R 2 B EE Increase in the expected cost
BLZR S N of claims for unexpired risks 393 — 393
16,048 313 16,361
2006
EZX-0| BRR T
Gross  Reinsurance Net
BET T BT T BEFTT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FEEREREBLAAE Current year claims and loss
EBA adjustment expenses 16,090 (11) 16,079
TEERERBLARAR Additional cost for prior years’
BRANBEIRR claims and loss adjustment
expenses 218 110 328
EREEREBFNEE (Decrease)/increase in claims
(R4 /1 incurred but not reported (891) 291 (600)
KimEAE R 2 A EE Decrease in the expected cost
AN D of claims for unexpired risks (177) e (177)
15,240 15,630

390
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7

RBREH A W SR A e 7

e#H ()

(b) PREEEFELENHEEN

NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(b) Commission expenses incurred on insurance

business
2007 2006
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS'000
ENREMBEESR Gross commissions paid and payable 23,874 21,805
A B R EWRE Less: Commissions received and
REAAEL receivable from reinsurers (697) (596)
HE&BRHFE Net commission expenses 23,177 21,209
R 3 8 OPERATING PROFIT
2007 2006
EBETIT BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
EERFE ALK Operating profit is stated after crediting
T3 &18: and charging the following:
A Crediting
0E 5 U &2 55 Net exchange gains 9,345 5,647
REMED W R EWAE Rentals received and receivable from
2 HIREEEHR investment properties less direct
outgoings 4,621 4,800
npx Charging
mEREE Depreciation and amortisation 4,855 2,003
HEEE ~ HEBEERZE Loss on disposal of property, plant
B8 and equipment 6 18
FEWE FUREE 18 (a) Impairment of loan receivable (a) — 3,227
FEitEZEXENES Operating lease rentals in respect of land
and buildings 758 584
% 2B B <& Auditors’ remuneration 3,133 3,035
EEE (FEE39() Management fee (Note 39(c)) 1,880 1,880
RIRE R AL (b) Retirement benefit costs (b) 641 615
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B A ()

(a)

HWHREAE—ZSERTFT—EBEEQT
FIREEE @ ZEXRNEREFED
A2006F12A31AHDEIZE -

#£2000F11 B30 8 Al » AEE G —
HAEMREE (REMKETED
MR MEEERZBEBEERY
2 RN EIzEEREE &
E7HEE HBEILUEEESR
& EERESHZTEIZHEREE
WEBEXRBH 2B ZTHE
& - EZ2000511H308 @ AEMH
HETEIBRRBEE ARSI ARSET
BHRBIR LR EI M A B RS E
([BEEFTED FrER o

SESAnEBSTE 2 HAEE
Gasl & B FE) & E%¥ 2,000t &
EEXAFBED 2T (200094
30HEMANEE 2MAREAAH
BEXAHFBDIZN) UREERZE
T8 - EEERSE2EHARFRA
BEBRRINGT BIFTHUR I 2 FREE AT
LAERD>EEORERKGTER
BB B ZMEN o R2007FE R
20065 12 531 B I BE{AT & AR ED
RZR UMK o

RABABHEEMS - AEET
BRAEEHREABEELE XM
B2 INE i m BT E S|
g - AREREEFEZEDLLE
BESEERSAH - MEMH
BRTNREAREREBEAEREREN
RABENEE -
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Annual Report 2007 4 ¥&

OPERATING PROFIT (Continued)

(a)

The amount represented an impairment loss made
against an advance to an unrelated company
reducing the net carrying value of the advance to nil
at 31st December 2006.

The Group contributed to a defined contribution
scheme (“DC Scheme”) which was available to all
eligible Hong Kong employees prior to 30th
November 2000.The assets of the scheme were held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. Contributions to
the scheme by the Group and employees were
calculated at 15% of the employees’basic salary until
30th November 2000 when the DC Scheme was
replaced by a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) set up under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The Group’s monthly contributions (mandatory and
voluntary) to the MPF Scheme for each employee are
calculated at the lower of HK$2,000 or 10% (or 6%
for employees who joined after 30th September
2000) of the monthly basic salary. The Group’s
contributions to the DC Scheme and MPF Scheme
can be reduced by the Group’s voluntary
contributions forfeited in relation to those
employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. At 31st December 2007 and
2006, there were no material unutilised forfeited
contributions.

For Mainland China employees, the Group
participates in the employee pension schemes
administered by the respective municipal
government in various locations in Mainland China
where the Group operates. The Group makes
monthly contributions calculated at a percentage of
the monthly payroll costs to these schemes and the
respective municipal government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of the
employees of the Group.
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9 BB RA 9 FINANCE COSTS
2007 2006
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
IRITER (EREFER Interest on bank loans wholly repayable
ZYEE) AE GEE33) within five years (Note 33) 9,622 6,944
FTERRER (BERAEFA  Interest on substantial shareholder’s loan
ZHEE) RS (FFF39(d)  wholly repayable within five years
(Note 39(d)) — 332
EHRR GEREFEA Interest on short term advances wholly
2HEE) AME@Q) repayable within five years (a) — 792
9,622 8,068
@ WANEDNREE—BRF2ENES (@) The interest was incurred for unsecured demand
NRBEAANFFZEIER - ERNE loans borrowed by a former non-wholly owned
REEENERANE (F8 subsidiary of the Group, Jinan Pacific (Note 38(b)).
38(b)) °
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10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES

EMOLUMENTS

T 4 2 i sl A\ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
() FEFM&E (a) Directors emoluments
5% RE
R fth A
REMF %
Salaries,
EE#E  housing, other 2007
Directors’ allowances and 4
fees benefits in kind Total
BETTT EBEFT EBEFT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HITES Executive Directors
THELE (ER) Mr. Ding Shi Da (Chairman) 100 — 100
RERLE BIERE)  Mr. Chen Gui Zong (Vice Chairman) 60 = 60
REREE Mr. Zhu Xue Lun 60 _ 60
FEFEE Mr. Weng Jian Yu 100 1,009 1,109
FHATES Non-executive Directors
ITefirs Mr. Wang Hui Jin 60 — 60
R4 Mr. Chen Le 60 = 60
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
ERBHLEE Mr. Ip Kai Ming 180 - 180
PEMEE Mr. Robert Tsai To Sze 250 — 250
BER AL Mr. So Hop Shing 180 — 180
1,050 1,009 2,059
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(@) #HHME (B)

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES EMOLUMENTS

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

5% REE
REMREL
REWF &
Salaries,
EZWE  housing, other 2006
Directors’  allowances and R
fees  benefits in kind Total
BETT BT T BT T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BITES Executive Directors
THELE (£F) Mr. Ding Shi Da (Chairman) 80 = 80
BRERLE BEFE)  Mr.Chen Gui Zong (Vice Chairman) 60 — 60
REMEL Mr. Zhu Xue Lun 60 — 60
FEFRE Mr. Weng Jian Yu 80 962 1,042
FHITES Non-executive Directors
ITERLLE Mr. Wang Hui Jin 60 — 60
BRELEE Mr. Chen Le 32 — 32
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
EREBLEE Mr. Ip Kai Ming 180 — 180
FEREE Mr. Robert Tsai To Sze 250 — 250
BEemEE Mr. So Hop Shing 180 = 180
982 962 1,944
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES

(b) Five highest paid individuals

EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

The analysis in note (a) above does not include those
individuals who are not directors but whose
emoluments are among the five highest in the Group.

FHEWT Details of the emoluments paid to those individuals
are as follows:
2007 2006
BETIT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
& EEREM Salaries, housing and other allowances,
ERE - REYF = and benefits in kind 4,116 4,133
ERERET B Contributions to retirement benefit
scheme — 24
AL Bonus 4,750 2,530
8,866 6,687
A ] Emoluments Band 2007 2006
A& AZ
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
BHEOTT — HKS$Nil - HK$1,000,000 — —
78 #£1,000,0007T
7B %%1,000,0017C — HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1 3
75 #51,500,0007T
78 #51,500,001 7T — HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 4 2

852 000,0007T
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11 FrfeBis 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
BEEMNBBR I RBFERMHERB SRR Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
B 17.5% (20065 : 17.5%) BB %#& 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
& o REIRth ORI 2 F 2 Bl 7K B R BR the year. Taxation on Mainland China and Macao profits
F R FFE R B & R K - B A b K2 R P has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for
ZIRITREFTE the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in Mainland
China and Macao.
ZEARRKKENR2007F38 1608 On 16th March 2007, the National People’s Congress
BTC(PEARLEMBEIBERBRE - approved the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC.The
H2008F1 A1 BEREBNWHBEAMER applicable tax rate for Mainland China profits of the Group
MEFERANAESHEEKA33%ER will be reduced from 33% to 25% from 1st January 2008.
25% °
EHREERRIEZHENT ¢ The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:
2007 2006
EEETIT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
= Current tax
BEBREH Hong Kong profits tax 256 101
FP ] A th 12 R P B 18 Mainland China and Macao taxation 85 71
341 172
TEEEBBRS Over provision in prior years
R PY % 18 Macao taxation (1) —
ERERIE Deferred tax
EREENEER Relating to the origination and
O (EE34) reversal of temporary
differances (Note 34) 4,006 2,568
FTiEFi Income tax expense 4,346 2,740
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

mT taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:
2007 2006
BETIT BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
R B4 A& A Profit before taxation 226,585 106,418
B ER175%:TE 2B = Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% 39,652 18,623
H At 8080 b & 7[5 Bt 2R Effect of different taxation rates in
£ other tax jurisdictions 1,456 1,001
AR 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (45,723) (24,962)
FEMB 2 H Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes 2,331 4,421
AEBRAZBERTHN Increase in unrecognised tax losses and
R B = RN deductible temporary differences 6,569 3,662
AEEEEBS Over provision in prior years (1) =
Hity Others 62 (5)
= H Income tax expense 4,346 2,740

A wI SR Fr A N REA i A

ARATREEEEABGESENELRD
BB HMERPEIE N BRI SN B
8,580& JT (20064 : B#52,0198 7T) °

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

12 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company includes a profit of HK$85.80 million (2006:
HK$20.19 million) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.
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13

14

Ji& B 13 DIVIDEND
2007 2006
BEFIT BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
REEREZRIRARERE Final dividend proposed after
BRI BER A4 the balance sheet date of
(2006%F : B HE4{L) 4 HK cents (2006: 4 HK cents)
per ordinary share 18,377 18,377
REE B REIRERIRE Special dividend proposed after
BREZER B 210 the balance sheet date of
(2006 : #&) 2 HK cents (2006: Nil)
per ordinary share 9,189 —
27,566 18,377

MR2008F 48 4B RT2EERE R
F o EEERBEIREEZE2007F12831H
LHEFEE2RBRESREBERBEE 4L
(20065 : BEAl) REFFIRESRE
R B2l (2006%F : ) o LLEHEIR
PR 230 £ A 7K B 3% 3R 3k R S R AT AR
B N EZE2008F 128318 LEE
FIERB BRI D E -

(535 &

BREARBFZREARATEZE2007F
12318 L FEERFE ABLGERNE
#522,223.98 7t (20064 : 7E#£10,482.5
EX)RFREBBITROZMEFEE
459,428,656 (2006%F : 459,428,656) IR 5t

i

5_0

REEAFEBEFEYECRITA
BEEN2EER  BUREEFEN
BREFENESRELFBFAER -

14

At a board meeting held on 24th April 2008, the Directors
proposed a final dividend of 4 HK cents (2006: 4 HK cents)
per ordinary share and a special dividend of 2 HK cents
(2006: Nil) per ordinary share for the year ended 31st
December 2007. These proposed dividends are not
reflected as a dividend payable in these financial
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of
retained profits for the year ending 31st December 2008.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year ended 31st December 2007 of HK$222,239,000
(2006: HK$104,825,000) and the weighted average of
459,428,656 (2006: 459,428,656) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The Group has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the current and prior years and therefore diluted
earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share
for the years presented.
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15 3 - AR St i 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(@ A%EHE (@ The Group
R &5
WERR
£ R
i Furniture,
BE#EF fixtures, office RE
Building held and computer Motor k]
for own use equipment vehicles Total
BETFIT BETFT BETFTT BETFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
R2006F1A1H At st January 2006
A Cost 9,407 8,877 3,754 22,038
ZHMER Accumulated depreciation and
HESE impairment losses (5,530) (6,187) (1,483) (13,200)
REFE Net book value 3,877 2,690 2,071 8,838
HZ20065F Year ended
12ANBLEEE 31st December 2006
HYREFE Opening net book value 3,877 2,690 2,271 8,838
EREH Translation differences = 5 4 9
A Additions — 340 = 340
REEHE Charge for the year (333) (520) (441) (1,294)
HE Disposals = (19) = (19)
HE-KEAT Disposal of a subsidiary
(F1838(b) (Note 38(b)) (90) (64) (421) (575)
HAREFE Closing net book value 3,454 2,432 1413 7,299
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15 W3¢ ~ #ads it (B0

(a) AEEHE ()

(Continued)

(@ The Group (Continued)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

R R
BWERR
ERER
i Furniture,
BEEF fixtures, office RE
Building held and computer Motor o
for own use equipment vehicles Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
12006512A31HK At 31st December 2006 and
200751R18 1st January 2007
A Cost 9,280 8,468 2,000 19,748
ZHMERAEFE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (5,826) (6,036) (587) (12,449)
EEFE Net book value 3,454 2,432 1413 7,299
HZ20075F Year ended
12A31HLEE 31st December 2007
BRETFE Opening net book value 3,454 2,432 1,413 7,299
ELELDE Translation differences = 4 @) —
iR Additions — 433 1,110 1,543
AEEHE Charge for the year (332) (521) 413) (1,266)
HE Disposals (6) (6)
HRREFE Closing net book value 3,122 2,342 2,106 7,570
1420075 12A31H At 31st December 2007
B Cost 9,280 8,734 3,110 21,124
ZHMERABEFE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (6,158) (6,392) (1,004) (13,554)
fREFE Net book value 3,122 2,342 2,106 7,570
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15 Y3 - AR Mt () 15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
(b) ZARAH (b) The Company
R &
WERR
ERRE
e Furniture,
BE#EF fixtures, office RE
Building held and computer Motor k]
for own use equipment vehicles Total
BETFIT BETFT BETFT BETFT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000
R2006F1A1H At st January 2006
A Cost 1,185 2,842 2,000 6,027
S MERRMERFE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (317) (1,654) (233) (2,204)
REFE Net book value 868 1,188 1,767 3,823
# Z20065F Year ended
12ANALEEE 31st December 2006
HYREFE Opening net book value 868 1,188 1,767 3,823
A Additions — 64 — 64
AEERE Charge for the year (65) (197) (354) (616)
HE Disposals = 3) = 3)

HAREFE Closing net book value 803 1,052 1,413 3,268
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15 W3¢ ~ #ads it (B0

(b) ARZ2H ()

(Continued)

(b) The Company (Continued)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

R R
BWEER
B
i Furniture,
BEEF fixtures, office RE
Building held and computer Motor o
for own use equipment vehicles Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
12006512A31HK At 31st December 2006 and
200751R18 1st January 2007
A Cost 1,185 2,887 2,000 6,072
ZHMERAEFE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (382) (1,835) (587) (2,804)
EEFE Net book value 803 1,052 1413 3,268
HZ20075 Year ended
12A31HLEE 31st December 2007
BRETFE Opening net book value 803 1,052 1,413 3,268
B Additions — 41 — 41
KEERE Charge for the year (65) (198) (282) (545)
HE Disposals — (1) = (1)
B AR (E Closing net book value 738 894 1,131 2,763
2007812318 At 31st December 2007
BA Cost 1,185 2,903 2,000 6,088
ZHMERAEFE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (447) (2,009) (869) (3,325)
IREFE Net book value 738 894 1,131 2,763
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16 HEWE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FEH b, /N

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BEFIT | BT | BETFrT | BY%Fr
HK$’000 HKS$’000 | HK$’000 HKS'000

NEE At fair value

M1A1R At 1st January 76,713 68,721 28,313 22,041
N GEFE38(0) Additions (Note 38(c)) — 2,185 — 1,570
NEE RS Fair value gain 13,799 5,807 9,699 4,702
90,512 76,713 38,012 28,313

REBRADNDAEREMFEDNIRE

The analysis of the Group’s and the Company'’s interests in

FEINWOT : investment properties at their net book value is as follows:
AEH AATF
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BETIT| BYTT | BETFT| BT
HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
EEREFEEAN Leases held in Hong Kong
50F B E Over 50 years 14,000 12,500 — —
10 Z505F Between 10 and 50 years 31,500 30,500 — —
EEMEERAN Leases held outside Hong Kong
105 2504 Between 10 and 50 years 45,012 33,713 38,012 28,313
90,512 76,713 38,012 28,313

REMERBILIEEEER  F—KF
HEMGERSEBERERA A RESE
HEENMGERERAR - #%20075F12
A31TEMNAFEEESRH -

The investment properties were revalued based on their
fair values as at 31st December 2007 by independent
professional valuers, namely Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited and Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited.
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16 #EWE (H) 16

—EHBARREBIEEAFEESY
4,5508 T (20065 : B¥4,300& 7T) WY
ETRENMENERZIBBTBRBE
EREEE  UNCEEMENERR

=)

&E °

17 FHE 1 M K - Ho fi R 17

AREBRAAREEEL R LR
FEMESIETRNEERIF - HR2007
F12ANEWERAFEEINMUOT -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The title deeds in respect of certain investment properties
in Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$45.5 million (2006:
HK$43.0 million) held by a subsidiary are placed in the
custody of the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance in
Hong Kong pursuant to the relevant regulatory
requirements.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE
RIGHTS

The Group’s and the Company’s interests in leasehold land
and land use rights represent prepaid operating lease
payments. Their net book value as at 31st December 2007
are analysed below:

AKE AAT
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BETIT| BYFr | BEFL | BYTT
HK$’000 HKS’'000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Y EREFE Opening net book value 18,335 86,914 2,829 2,836
E X EZE Translation differences 10,878 434 — —
B Additions 305,759 — — —
e Amortisation (3,589) (709) (9) 7)
& — KB 2 A Disposal of a subsidiary
(FEF£38(b)) (Note 38(b)) — (68,304) — —
AR BRE R E Closing net book value 331,383 18,335 2,820 2,829
B HARBEE Less: Amount included in
BRNE%E current assets (313,342) — = —
FIAFERBE E Amount included in
BRASZE non-current assets 18,041 18,335 2,820 2,829
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17 FHE L Hb Kt bl FRE (%)

ME+ K + i BN IREFE DA

RIGHTS (Continued)

17 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE

The net book value of leasehold land and land use rights

M - is analysed as follows:
*%E *4]
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BETIT| BT | BEFT| BEFT
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000
EEBEEEY Leases held in Hong Kong
50F KA £ Over 50 years 4,554 4,576 2,154 2,157
105 E50F Between 10 and 50 years 12,512 12,771 — —
EEMNEEEY Leases held outside Hong Kong
50F B k£ Over 50 years 313,651 317 — —
10F E50F Between 10 and 50 years 666 671 666 672
331,383 18,335 2,820 2,829

AREBHEET R T {FERENKAS
7 #5335,383,867 7T (20065 : B #E
29,624,4887TT) °©

The cost of the leasehold land and land use rights of the
Group was HK$335,383,867 (2006: HK$29,624,488).
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18 )& 2 Wl

18 SUBSIDIARIES

AAT

Company
2007 2006
BEFIT BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
Ik ETMRRG, B Unlisted shares, at cost 58,605 58,605
ERTHEAT  BE Loans to subsidiaries, interest bearing 279,700 79,700
ERTFHEBLAT B Loans to subsidiaries, interest free 67,671 70,263
MEBARXR  RE Amounts due from subsidiaries, interest free 148,016 22,525
X—HMEBLAERE &L Amounts due to a subsidiary, interest free — (7)
495,387 172,481
553,992 231,086
B OBEEE Less: Impairment losses (96,309) (94,756)
457,683 136,330

BTHBATNERRERK  URR
B BB 2 0 0 T 2 4 9 9 I 4 2 A R R
+-EAAKE - ATHEBATNES
EHRETREENENASE « F8
$5.47 [F) 8247 .50 b4 R SR 1 0 RO B R A
EHE o

The loans to and amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are
unsecured and are not repayable within the next twelve
months. The interest bearing loans to subsidiaries are
charged at a spread over Hong Kong Dollar prime rate,
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or at fixed rates of 10%
per annum.
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18 &+ (%) 18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
DTFHERBIER2007F12831BE AR The following list contains the particulars of those
EENXE EEIABEREAREN subsidiaries at 31st December 2007 which principally
MELAT - REBHBN  FIFEZR affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
HEEBRMD - class of shares held is ordinary shares unless otherwise

stated.
BT
& kAR X%E
EERE RA#E Pk
Place of Particulars Group's TEEH
incorporation  of issued and equity Principal
ATER Name of company and operations  paid up capital interest activities
EERE Directly held

SARRERLA Dorfine Development Limited £B WRBR 100% NERE

BT
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HKS1 each investment
REMEREEN Fujian Minxin Investment hEARLANE SR 100% REBMRH

BRA R Consultants Co,, Ltd, M&@ BE00E T
The People's Registered Investment
Republic of China capital consulting
HK$3,000,000 services
B (PE)REBRAT Min Xin (China) Investment ABELZBEE RERI1ER 100% REER
Limited British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
AEERBRAR Min Xin Infrastructure REEZEE 1RER1ER 100% REER
Limited British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
BERBRERLF Min Xin Insurance Company BB 5,500 I 100% &7
Limited gRB®IT -RIRBER
Hong Kong 55,000,000 Writing of
shares general

of HK$1 each insurance

business




18

b g o ) () 18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
BET
i3 k&R FRE
-3 RAzE P
Place of Particulars Group's TEEH
incorporation  of issued and equity Principal
AT &R Name of company and operations  paid up capital interest activities
KERBELBRAR Ranger Insurance Brokers e 60B R 100% R
Limited R
Hong Kong 600,000 shares Insurance
of HKS1 each brokerage
services
ABBRAR Take Chance Company e WER 100% NERE
Limited BEIT
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
Thousand Limited Thousand Limited EBRZBE RER1ER 100% REER
British 1 share of USS1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
AHRERERAF Welljet Development Limited e WER 100% NERE
LA
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
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(1) FRBEIRMKESTMEBRIERZ
DNE  BELARZEEFEREX
BORNEREEFEHE20.09%K%

0.06% °

2) HERBZRHIEDLRE

18 &+ (%) 18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
BET
2R k&R 35E
-3 RAzE P
Place of Particulars Group's TEEH
incorporation  of issued and equity Principal
AT &% Name of company and operations  paid up capital interest activities
E#ERA Indirectly held
AEREBRAR Min Xin Properties Limited 5B 5008 1% 100% REER
BRE® T
Hong Kong 5,000,000 Investment
shares holding
of HK$1 each
B GM EXER Minxin (Suzhou) Property REARLN EfRA 100% NEER
BRAR Development Co,, Ltd. ® BEUET RHE
The People’s Registered Property
Republic of China capital development
HK$200,000,000 and sale
Shining Gold Limited Shining Gold Limited EBEZHE IRSRER 100% RELRK
British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
Wide Exposure Developments  Wide Exposure Developments KERZBEE IRER1ER 100% REER
Limited Limited British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding

(1)  Company not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.The net
assets and turnover attributable to this company represent
approximately 0.09% and 0.06% respectively of the Group's
consolidated totals.

(2)  Wholly foreign-owned enterprises in Mainland China.

— -
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19 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b5 AT
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BETFT | BT | B¥%Fiw | BY%Fr
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
FEEMRRM » A Unlisted investments, at cost — — | 210,805 210,805
BiEEEFE Share of net assets 923,502 725,154 — —
B OREEE Less: Impairment losses — — (5,005) (5,005)
923,502 725,154 205,800 205,800
ERT—HEES Loan to a jointly controlled
B Db entity (b) 16,334 16,334 — —
REHEE®) Total investments (a) 939,836 741,488 | 205,800 205,800
JELEMRRM - AN Unlisted investments,
at cost 210,805 210,805
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19 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)

@) AERERHEBEGIERZIREDH (a)

The Group'’s investments in jointly controlled entities

mT are analysed below:
EFIERER 1T
Xiamen Hip Pk ]
International Bank Others Total
BT BETTT BETTT
HKS’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
20061818 At 1st January 2006 596,050 26,848 622,898
EXE%E Translation difference 19,760 754 20,514
FEAG BRB 18 F R F Share of net profit after
taxation 94,002 5,031 99,033
ETRE Dividend paid (21,642) = (21,642)
REEMRESIEM Increase in investment
revaluation reserve 20,685 — 20,685
20065128318 & At 31st December 2006 and
200751818 1st January 2007 708,855 32,633 741,488
BN =58 Translation difference 41,706 1,872 43,578
FE{EBREL & R R A Share of net profit after
taxation 141,357 6,083 147,440
REEMRFESEM Increase in investment
revaluation reserve 7,330 — 7,330
2007128318 At 31st December 2007 899,248 40,588 939,836
by HERAEIKE RENERTEE (b) The loan is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed
H o repayment terms.

REBRARNREEZEBHEAN
T2 BUR AT 7 3R H B 42 ) & Bl i
B BEFRBEERERRITE
FRRA (RE¥E39(a)) °

DT HERBHER2007F12 831 B 24
B H [E)
HEE HEEREIHVAFELTA

SENERNEERE

7 e

Bank deposits placed by the Group and the Company
with jointly controlled financial institutions in the
normal course of business are included in cash and
bank balances (Note 39(a)).

The following list contains the particulars of those jointly
controlled entities at 31st December 2007 which
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. All
of these entities are unlisted corporates.
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H 1] 52 il B8 (380D

19 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)
R EETR FREH
REEWE HRRE Bk
Place of Particulars Group's TEER
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
HERHERER Name of jointly controlled entities  and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERT Directly held
EFEIRRT Xiamen International Bank, PEARLNE HfER 36.75% RORREER
REKBAR and its subsidiaries ARB6ETR
BH434389148 T
The People’s Registered capital Banking and
Republic of China  RMB600,000,000 and investment
HK$434,389,140 holding
REREARAT Fast Rise Investments Limited &8 RERERIR 36.75% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HKS1 each investment
RMERET Luso International Banking Limited il 0B ARR 34.95% ®AT
1568 B RER
RPI#1,0007T
Macao 300,000 Class A Banking
and 15,600 Class B
Shares of
MOP1,000 each
EEREERLA Setwide Investments Limited £B WERES T 36.75% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
RBEZRERAT Silver Win Development Limited BB WRBREE 1T 36.75% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HKS1 each investment
RERRERAA Wealth Rise Development Limited £4 WBRES 1T 36.75% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HKS1 each investment
EMBERRERRAR Xiamen International Investment £B 1BR 36.75% REER
Limited gRE% T
Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding
XIB Properties Limited XIB Properties Limited FED 171 36.75% NERE
gR1ZR
Liberia 1,000 shares Property
of US$1 each investment
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19 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(Continued)
iR BETR FREH
RESHEY HRRE AR
Place of Particulars Group's TEER
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
LERHERER Name of jointly controlled entities  and operations paid up capital interest activities
BERE Indirectly held
BiEEERE Min Faith Investments Limited ), £B 18R 40% REER
BRAR O, and its subsidiaries gRE% T
REKBAF Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
of HKS1 each holding
BNEEBRELAS Fuzhou Charm Faith Autosystem R E AR AE aEX 40% EERHEE
BRARO Co, Ltd. ™ 121B%7% BFEX
The People's Registered capital Manufacturing
Republic of China USD1,210,000 and distribution
of digital
instruments
BNEBEHLERER  Fuzhou Charm Faith Instruments ~ REARLAE TMEX 40% EERME
BRARO Co, Ltd. ™ WEET BFEX
The People's Registered capital Manufacturing
Republic of China USD200,000 and distribution
of digital
instruments
BNERRERER Fuzhou Hi-Tech Instruments hEARLNE aEX 0% HEHFERR
ARAFO Co, Ltd." ARE10038T RERESTR
The People’s Registered capital Distribution of
Republic of China RMB10,030,000 digital instruments
and investment in
security company
XZEBABLEHRE  Tianjin Charm Faith PEARLNE &R 20.8% LERHE
BRARO Autoequipment Co,, Ltd. AR%1,0008 7 BB EHRE
The People’s Registered capital Manufacturing
Republic of China RMB10,000,000 and distribution of
auto-equipment
BEEBEBILER Min Faith Instruments Limited ", &8 18R 20.4% REER
BRARO and its subsidiary gRAE® T
REKBATE Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding
REEEER Tianjin Charm Faith Instruments ~ REA R £ A HMEX 20.4% EERHE
BRRA O Co, Ltd." 60X BFEX
The People’s Registered capital Manufacturing
Republic of China USD600,000 and distribution of
digital instruments
(1) FRBERKERFTENEKEMERZ (1)  Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.The

aggregate net assets and profits before taxation
attributable to these companies represent approximately
0.92% and 2.74% respectively of the Group’s consolidated
totals.

2N B ERTR 2 RFTEE
BEKBRFRADERN D B ARER
REHAEEZ0.92%2.74% ©
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AEE b, /N
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BETFIT | BYFr | BEFIL | B¥ T
HK$’000 HKS’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
FELETRRH » A Unlisted investments, at cost = — = 10,070
EHEEEFE Share of net assets 10,290 8,511 — —
10,290 8,511 — 10,070
ERTHE QT Loans to associates 54,816 54,759 — —
65,106 63,270 — 10,070
FELETRRM - KA Unlisted investments, at cost 4,453 14,515

MTBED

AERERERER 22
REREERY -

A

7200653 8 » Promise Good Limited
(TPGL) RT3z thh & tH & H HA B 1 3 1
EWEBABRENHE AR T ILEMHB
RAMNDHRR GERE32) ° PGLIHA2006
F1R2ABRKEEHMBARNEERA
BEIAFIELENERBEERR o It
RZENFRTH » AEB#ENLHE
BB TN EBE L E AR
XEATTR o

The loans to associates are unsecured, interest free and
have no fixed repayment terms.

In March 2006, Promise Good Limited (“PGL") has entered
into an agreement to dispose of the equity interest in the
subsidiaries engaged in toll road investments in Mainland
China to the minority shareholder of those subsidiaries
(Note 32).The assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries
have been accounted for as non-current assets held-for-
sale by PGL for the year ended 31st December 2006.The
transaction was completed during the year and the gain
on disposal of HK$9.1 million shared by the Group was
included in the Group's share of results of associates.
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DUTHEERBER2007F12831 B AR
EEMNEENEEEERTFENHE D
Ao WEHENTEAHEBIELTA
§_|o

20 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following list contains the particulars of those
associates at 31st December 2007 which principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. All these
associates are unlisted corporates.

a2k BETR FEEH
E2n HRRAEE AR
Place of Particulars Group’s TEEH
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
BEATAHE Name of associates and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERE Indirectly held
BERBRERLT Hong Kong Vigorous Limited BA 1B 30% RERR
BRE®IT
Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding
BRERERAF - Vigorous Developments Limited, RERLHE 1BR 30% REER
REKBAF and its subsidiary SEAES
British 10,000 shares Investment
Virgin Islands of US$1 each holding
SRLRBARER Maanshan Huan Tung Highway R EARLAE afRA 21% 0 EERI
ARAE Development Limited AR#99458 T
The People’s Registered capital Infrastructure
Republic of China RMB99,450,000
KERRERAR Raytek Development Limited £h 18R 40% REER
sRE®IT
Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding
Promise Good Limited, Promise Good Limited, RBEZHE 1BR 40% REER
REKBAR : — and its subsidiaries;— SEAES
British 10,000 shares Investment
Virgin Islands of US$1 each holding
BEREERAT Nickwell Investments Limited REEZEE RERIER 40% REER
British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
KERERRAR Raytek Investments Limited RERZEE RERIZER 40% REER
British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
BEREERAR Wise Link Investments Limited RERZEE RERIER 40% REER
British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
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20 & A 20 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(1) FEEEFZHEMR2000F1A6E 0 £ (1) The profit sharing arrangement commenced from January
LS QR RREE BT 524% 0 BB 2000 and the Group’s share of the associate’s profit is 24%
BAEFR18%  BRTFH5H21% ° for the first five years, 18% for the next five years and 21%

for the remaining years.

REBTHIHL AT W EER 2 The financial information of the Group’s associates

BREESER AN AREs =L extracted from their financial statements prepared in

i &l 2 B i 3R 3= - accordance with the generally accepted accounting

principles in their place of incorporation is as follows:
BE Bff  REHEL [ ON it Fl
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues Profit
BEFT  E¥Fm  BETT  EETnm BT
HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000

2007 2007

24t Aggregated 287,658 (44,517) 243,14 66,553 53,550

AEEMELES Group’s attributable

interest 77,7114 (12,563) 65,151 14,514 14,449

20065 2006

it Aggregated 690,029  (443,767) 246,262 63,197 27,531

AEENEGER Group's attributable

interest 169,317 (113,369) 55,948 15,657 4,137
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ASSETS

EREREAT
Group and Company
2007 2006
BEFT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
NE{E At fair value
M1A1R At 1st January 620,768 359,349
RBRESHFEHEETRZ Fair value gain recognised in investment
NFEEWE FERE3S) revaluation reserve (Note 35) 688,044 261,419
1,308,812 620,768
REEHE Disposal during the year (167,942) —
M12A31H At 31st December 1,140,870 620,768

ARHEEREENAEEEEERE
BMENRGDERLT ([FERE]) 7,2008 5%
(2006 : 10,8008 i%) ([ZERER D] 2
BE EZgELS—BRPEFMAZZA
B HRORLELBREBZESRSZ M
FREFEXERARFTERERE
HES S -

AEERENEERROUTAFEREE
ABR > 1A20065F3H8H » FERE A IRAE
PEREFR (REFR] - BHERAE
EABRRESERER LT REAR
R RERE » NEBETIFERRKR G
2 52006F48 198 ((EmHHE) E L
BEZRZAMARTISZ LT - BEZER
PRESBFRGA LT ARBABIR
EEXTERE  BERELCEEELT
(BRERECE)FDELMRBEE -

The available-for-sale financial assets represent the Group'’s
investment in 72 million shares (2006: 108 million shares)
("Huaneng Shares”) of Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng”), a company incorporated in the PRC with
shares listed on the stock exchanges of Shanghai and Hong
Kong and its principal activities are generation and sale of
electric power in the PRC.

The Huaneng Shares held by the Group were previously
non-circulating legal person shares. On 8th March 2006,
Huaneng announced a share reform proposal (the
“Proposal”) to convert the non-circulating legal person
shares into listed and circulating A-Shares. Following the
implementation of the Proposal, the Huaneng Shares held
by the Group were listed on the A-Share market of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange on 19th April 2006 (the “Listing
Date”). However, the circulation of these shares on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange is subject to the granting of
consent for such circulation by the Group’s substantial
shareholder, Fujian Investment & Enterprise Holdings
Corporation (“FIEC").
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]k e ()

F20075F3H290 - BERELFEBEA
AEE RTIREEASEERHELHE
3,600B IRERRHD ((ZEE] FTRER
ELENART  BERECEFEE
BEAEEREBEEROR LERERS
Fr E WA 200754848 » NEE
HEERECESITREEZESR (&
&R HEZEE - REZER » &%
EUAReRE (BERE]D) AR
14,7248 7t (ZENB¥151778 ) &
BEDEETRERELCE  WHREZE
EH2006F38 18 ZERTKE B H™E
EEFEEN(EEXRZER) HREE

ZABMWTER A B2007F7H128 » &
SETEWERERRECELIANEE
REKZEERH2006%F381HZE20065F
1AHHBEEFEEMORESH
ARHE152558 70 (BEQNBE157248
7T) o AEBRFRERRBI B KRB
4,9668 JT °

72007F 128318 » NEBEIRBEEFEREA
ROWHEABHERROD 2AFERE
HGE o A20075FE 128318 » AEER
EREERO2EGBEAARK107E
T (EENBE11.487T) » REZE2007
F1R2ANBLFEE  ERESEGRES
A AR A FEW A B 68,8048 T
(2006128310 : B#26,1428T) °

HRAEBEHEZEETRERELRH
EESHTEAMLBMNHEERNEHE
B ARAEEERRFREDBESF
ERBERA A FEWRSOBIERE -

REERBXRRBR  FARESENER
BROMRA EHRBAR °
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21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS (Continued)

On 29th March 2007, FIEC confirmed to the Group that its
consent for the circulation of Huaneng Shares held by the
Group on the Shanghai Stock Exchange would only be
granted if the Group arranged to transfer 36 million of
Huaneng Shares (the “Asset”) to FIEC. On 4th April 2007,
the Group entered into a share transfer agreement (the
“Agreement”) with FIEC to dispose of the Asset.Under the
Agreement, the Group will transfer the Asset to FIEC at a
cash consideration (“Fixed Consideration”) of RMB147.24
million (equivalent to approximately HKS151.77 million),
which is to be adjusted by an amount equal to the
appreciation in the net asset value (as defined in the
Agreement) of the Asset from 1st March 2006 to the date
of completion of the Agreement.

The Agreement was completed on 12th July 2007 and the
Group has received from FIEC the Fixed Consideration and
the appreciation in the net asset value of the Asset from
1st March 2006 to 31st December 2006 totalling
RMB152.55 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$157.24 million). A gain (after tax) of HK$49.66 million
was recognised by the Group during the year.

As at 31st December 2007, the Group has estimated the
fair value of the Huaneng Shares with reference to the
closing bid price of Huaneng’s A-Share. The Group's
investment in Huaneng Shares was revalued to RMB1.07
billion (equivalent to approximately HK$1.14 billion) as at
31st December 2007 and a fair value gain of HK$688.04
million (31st December 2006: HK$261.42 million) was
recognised in the investment revaluation reserve for the
year ended 31st December 2007.

Since the Group has obtained a certificate of tax
exemption from the tax bureau in Fuzhou, Mainland China
for the disposal of the Asset to FIEC, the tax provision made
in prior periods in respect of the fair value gain recognised
by the Group was subsequently reversed during the year.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Huaneng Shares
held by the Group become listed and circulating A-Shares.
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22

23

A% 90 BUAT: i AR 22 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS
AEHE
Group
2007 2006
BETFT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS’000
FHREFE Opening net book amount 15,861 13,445
& Additions 20,260 23,625
EPNEEES FE Amortisation charged to income
(FEFE7(b) statement (Note 7(b)) (23,177) (21,209)
FARIREFE Closing net book amount 12,944 15,861
i B g ek 23 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE
AEE
Group
2007 2006
BETFT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
RIB - BLERBAN AR Due from agents, brokers and
intermediates 12,101 15,532
B OBEEE Less: Impairment losses (2,541) (2,582)
9,560 12,950
EHREFEFARR Due from contract holders 634 111
B OBEEE Less: Impairment losses = (5)
634 106
BREAXRK Due from reinsurers 627 649
B OBEEE Less: Impairment losses (528) (538)
99 111
10,293 13,167
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23 PR b E WOk () 23 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE (Continued)
R B FE SR R B0 40 2 1= B PR — R 90 The credit period for the majority of insurance receivable
RENRORTE - REBERNRZEER normally ranges from 90 to 120 days. The credit terms of
HEERATERAE=EHAER H insurance receivable, including whether guarantees from
BREBABRE ° third parties are required, are determined by senior
management.
720075128318 » REEERR A ERER At 31st December 2007, the ageing analysis of insurance
DA GRBEZHE) WTF : receivable by invoice date was as follows:
Group
2007 2006
BT BETF T
HK$’000 HKS000
30HA Within 30 days 2,450 2,624
31260H 31-60 days 2,758 3,422
61£90H 61-90 days 2,238 2,879
i@ 90 H Over 90 days 2,847 4,242
10,293 13,167
24 FORERE E 24 REINSURANCE ASSETS
FEE
Group
2007 2006
EEFr BT T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
BRiEAEBGRREE Reinsurers’ share of insurance
(FE#29) liabilities (Note 29) 7,373 10,338
LT EET ARBERFRA GEE Balance above exclude the amounts due from reinsurers
23) BREBAXSEAEEHR I REND X in respect of claims already paid by the Group on the
TR RSB RRIE © contracts that are reinsured, which are included in

insurance receivable (Note 23).
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24

25

26

27

MR bE E ()

BREEEGE —SEHNT=@EAZ
U B B SR IE B 1678 TT (20065F B
1818 7T) °

At WAL K

2007F 1231 B AR EEAREEE W
FERREERETCENREAARY
12188 7t (EEANEY1,30087T) ° It
REAREERFRNEEZEETRE
RELEMNEKRNAE GERE21) -

24

25

REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

Included in the balance is an amount of HK$1.67 million
(2006: HK$1.81 million) which is expected to be recovered
after twelve months.

OTHER DEBTORS

The balance at 31st December 2007 included an amount
receivable from the Group’s substantial shareholder, FIEC,
of RMB12.18 million (equivalent to approximately HK$13
million). The amount represented the consideration
receivable by the Group for transferring the Asset to FIEC
(Note 21) during the year.

TN FAE 725 B R 250 BE B4 4 i 26 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
EE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
AEH AEAT
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BETIT | BT | BETIT| BT
HK$’000 HKS’000 HKS$’000 HKS'000
BIEEEREES ©  Equity securities held for
REBLS trading, listed in
—E&mE Hong Kong
— at market value 5,247 2,820 278 426
Bl e RAT R fE 27 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

HRERBITEFEELEEATE R
ETRITZERAREN B (&
B%12,313878) (20065F12A31H : A
K#23,7168 7T 0 £E B 23,6508
JT) °

BIEE B RMEEEE T SHE
EN—EHBRARELEBRAETLRN
7B¥51,6008 7t (20065 12H31H : B
1,6008B7T) 2ESBBRITER o &M
B A BN 4EE B 12878 T (20065128
318 @ B¥s528 ) 2IRITERUAFE
BRPFIKREEBESES) 2B THRE °

Included in cash and bank balances are deposits of
RMB115.31 million (equivalent to HK$123.13 million)
placed with certain banks in Mainland China (31st
December 2006: RMB237.16 million, equivalent to
HK$236.50 million).

Pursuant to the requirements from the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a subsidiary
maintains at all times a portion of its funds, being not less
than HK$16 million (31st December 2006: HKS 16 million),
in bank deposits. The subsidiary has also maintained a
bank deposit of HK$2.87 million (31st December 2006:
HK$5.22 million) for fulfilling certain requirements under
the Macao Insurance Ordinance.
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27 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirements of the bank loan agreement
(Note 33) entered into by the Company during the year, a
sum of HK$35.62 million maintained by the Company with
the lending bank was credited to the charged account
maintained with the same bank for the fulfillment of the
Company’s repayment obligations.

28 NON-CURRENT ASSETSHELD-FOR-SALE

AEE AaT
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BT | BT | BT | BETT
HK$’000 HKS’000 | HK$’000 HKS'000
FELETRRH » A Unlisted investments,
at cost 10,070 — 10,070 —
Mg B ERZ KB Amount recognised
directly in equity 1,029 — — —
11,099 — 10,070 —

12007128 » RATRTLZEUAAR
#1,0698 T (ZENBE1,142B7T) W
REEZENEEEERAERRRH
BRA T (—RBFKRILREIE IR
HEE QT MRET—BILE=E (&
Ex]) c R2007F128318 AR T
WEZE RARK00E T (ZELNBIE
854BTT) RS - REMEKEFER
S ER BB ER S IEE - KK
EFEGTINRTHABRRLE KRR B
1248 7T °

In December 2007, the Company enter into an agreement
to transfer its equity interest in an associate engaged in
sewage and waste treatment services, Fujian Hua Yuan City
Construction Environment Protection Co., Ltd., to an
independent third party (the “Buyer”) at a consideration
of RMB10.69 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$11.42 million). The Company has received from the
Buyer a deposit of RMB8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$8.54 million) at 31st December 2007.
The completion of the transaction is subject to the
approval from the relevant authority and registration of
the transfer.The Group is expected to recognise a gain on
disposal of HK$1.24 million upon completion.
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29 PRBE G A S R b 29 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS
FEH
Group
2007 2006
BETFT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
£ Gross
EHREEN Short term insurance contracts
EE2REEREX Claims reported and loss
FAEER adjustment expenses 31,452 39,324
EREERERERE Claims incurred but not reported 13,577 13,583
45,029 52,907
RMHRE Unearned premiums 28,088 34,848
ROmER B B 1 Unexpired risks provision 936 543
RIGEEEE £8 Total insurance liabilities, gross 74,053 88,298
FEW B RPN FRIE Recoverable from reinsurers
EHREEN Short term insurance contracts
EE2REEREX Claims reported and loss
FAEEBR adjustment expenses (1,673) (1,805)
ERLEBREHREE Claims incurred but not reported (5,234) (5,241)
(6,907) (7,046)
KmHRE Unearned premiums (466) (3,292)
BIRE AL RE Total reinsurers’ share of insurance
EEEE GTE29) liabilities (Note 24) (7,373) (10,338)
B Net
EHREEN Short term insurance contracts
EE2REEREX Claims reported and loss
FAEER adjustment expenses 29,779 37,519
ERLEBREFREE Claims incurred but not reported 8,343 8,342
38,122 45,861
KmH R E Unearned premiums 27,622 31,556
Ao B LB R 4 Unexpired risks provision 936 543
RIGEELEE  FE Total insurance liabilities, net 66,680 77,960
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INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

The liabilities for gross claims reported, loss adjustment

expenses and claims incurred but not reported are net of

expected recoveries from salvage and subrogation.

Included in the net insurance liabilities balance is an
amount of HK$20.44 million (2006: HK$26.98 million)
which is expected to be settled after twelve months.

(@) Assumptions on short term non-life insurance
contracts

(i)

Process used to decide on assumptions

The Group uses several statistical methods to
incorporate the various assumptions made in
order to estimate the ultimate cost of claims.
The choice of selected results for each accident
year of each class of business depends on an
assessment of the technique that has been
most appropriate to observed historical
developments. In certain instances, different
techniques or combination of techniques have
been selected for individual accident years or
groups of accident years within the same class
of business.

In estimating the claims liabilities of the
Group’s motor insurance portfolio, the paid and
incurred loss development methods
supplemented by the Bornhuetter-Ferguson
(“BF”) method are applied.
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29 RBEaE# Rk IRBEE E (B)
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ENREBEENBREREE
RAELEEREEXER
RARREERA - MBFE A
BRAFTEALRESER
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RRBAHNERFE - B
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20 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(@) Assumptions on short term non-life insurance
contracts (Continued)

(i)

Process used to decide on assumptions
(Continued)

The paid and incurred loss development
methods use historical patterns of claim to
project the ultimate cost of the claims, and the
BF method relies on a gradual transition from
an estimated loss ratio to an experience-rated
development. BF method is applied to the
more recent accident years, for which the paid
and incurred loss development methods may
yield less accurate results. The industry wide
trends in the claims costs, direct and
reinsurance premium rates and underwriting
profitability for the motor insurance business
in Hong Kong are also considered in the
ultimate claims liabilities estimation. The
estimation of the premium liabilities is made
by reference to the projected ultimate loss
ratios, which is the estimated ultimate claims
liability divided by the earned premium.

For other class of insurance portfolio of the
Group, the incurred loss development methods
supplement with the earned premium and
average incurred loss year development are
used to project the estimated ultimate loss
ratio.
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29 PREEEH R IRBRE E (B
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20 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(&) Assumptions on short term non-life insurance
contracts (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis— sensitivity of insurance and
claims development tables

The reasonableness of the estimation process
is tested by an analysis of sensitivity around
several difference scenarios.The change in the
monetary awards granted for bodily injury
suffered and also the employers’ liability claims
is the most critical to the assumptions used to
estimate the liabilities for these insurance
contracts.

The Group believes that the liability for these
claims carried at the year-end is adequate.
However, an increase of 10% in the cost of these
claims would require the recognition of an
additional loss of approximately HK$3.8 million
(2006: HK$4.6 million) net of reinsurance.

The impact on the profit before taxation
described above does not take into account of
changes in other variables, as they are
considered to be less material. Such an
assessment and the relative materiality of
individual variables may change in the future.

In addition to scenario testing, the
development of insurance liabilities provides
a measure of the Group’s ability to estimate the
ultimate value of claims. The top half of the
table below illustrates how the Group'’s
estimate of total claims outstanding for each
accident year has changed at successive year-
ends. The bottom half of the table reconciles
the cumulative claims to the amount
appearing in the balance sheet.
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INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(@) Assumptions on short term non-life insurance
contracts (Continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis— sensitivity of insurance and

JR 1B IR IR () claims devel opment tables (Continued)
RIGHE1E —E47 Insurance claims-gross
ENEE Accident year 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 483 Total
B¥Fr  BETn  BMFn  BETn  BMTn | BETn
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKs'000 | HKS'000
it RABEAA Estimate of ultimate claims costs
RERER at end of accident year 28139 31,830 36,006 29,854 31,045
-E# one year later 18,566 20,835 27,552 17114
“E# two years later 18418 20,986 2,727
ZE# three years later 16,505 20,746
mE# four years later 16,499
L BREDMT Current estimate of cumulative claims 16,499 20,746 2,727 17,114 31,045 113,131
ESZHMAR Cumulative payment to date (14,560) (18,086) (17,687) (10,517) (8,690) (69,540)
1,939 2,660 10,040 6,597 22,355 43,591
FEEER Liability in respect of prior years 1,438

45,029
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND

REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(@) Assumptions on short term non-life insurance

contracts (Continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis— sensitivity of insurance and

JR 15 I PR (4) claims devel opment tables (Continued)
RIGFEE — /FER Insurance claims-net
BHER Accident year 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 8% Total
BETT  EEFn  BEFn BB BEFn | E%Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
st EAREHAR Estimate of ultimate claims costs
REHER atend of accident year 21,946 23,948 28,880 24421 25,560
-Ef one year later 16,882 18717 25,614 16,276
k23 two years later 16,948 18,695 25,485
“Ff three years later 15,035 18,240
mE% four years later 14,992
ZHRREDE Current estimate of cumulative claims 14,992 18,240 25,485 16,276 25,560 100,553
ESEHF Cumulative payment to date (13,053) (15,620) (16,963) (9,679) (8447) | (63,762)
1,939 2,620 8,522 6,597 17,113 36,791
TEEER Liability in respect of prior years 1,331
38,122
AEBALEERELBN The Group has in place a series of effective

ETHEHRBERI L&
SIBRN D RER -

reinsurance covers on a number of short-term

insurance products that have remained

unchanged in recent years.
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(b) PREEG A S R B A B

INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND

REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Movement in insurance contracts and
reinsurance assets

() HFERERHEEET (i) Claimsand loss adjustment expenses
2007 2006
£8 BRRIR B £ BRER T
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
BEFT AETT BT | BEFn  BETn BETx
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEHRERE Notified claims 39,324 (1,805) 37,519 42,967 (1,935) 41,032
BEREBRER Incurred but not reported 13,583 (5,241) 8,342 14,474 (5,532) 8,942
R1B1A At 1st January 52,907 (7,046) 45,861 57,441 (7,467) 49,974
ERINESEMHEE  Cash paid for claims settled
during the year (23,533) (174) (23,707) (19,952) 31 (19,921)
EEEM/ (B Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
EEELEE arising from current year claims 17,257 (42) 17,215 16,090 (10) 16,080
FEEERHE arising from prior year claims (1,596) 348 (1,248) 219 109 328
BEEERER arising from incurred but
not reported (6) 7 1 (891) 291 (600)
R12A318 At 31st December 45,029 (6,907) 38,122 52,907 (7,046) 45,861
EEHRER Notified claims 31,452 (1,673) 29,779 39,324 (1,805) 37,519
EREBRER Incurred but not reported 13,577 (5,234) 8,343 13,583 (5,241) 8,342
R12H318 At 31st December 45,029 (6,907) 38,122 52,907 (7,046) 45,861
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND

REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Movement in insurance contracts and
reinsurance assets (Continued)

(if)

Provision for unearned premiums and unexpired
short term insurance risks

The movement for the year are summarised

below.

KaHREEES Provision for unearned premiums

2007 2006
£ BRRE B X BRE e
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
BRI EETT BT | BEfn BT BETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
WA At 1st January 34,848 (3,292) 31,556 34,471 (3,468) 31,003
EREM Increase during the year 28,088 (466) 27,622 34,848 (3,292) 31,556
ERER Release during the year (34,848) 3,292 (31,556) (34471) 3,468 (31,003)
R12A318 At 31st December 28,088 (466) 27,622 34,848 (3,292) 31,556
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(b) PR B A 2 M P AR B A )
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(1) R W B 1R 2 J R g Y e A

INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Movement in insurance contracts and
reinsurance assets (Continued)

(i)

Provision for unearned premiums and unexpired

i fg <8 (7)) short term insurance risks (Continued)
KnHEGEERE Provision for unexpired risks
2007 2006
£# BRI ] £ BRE R
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
BEFT AETT BT | BETr  BEFr  BETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
#1B1A At Tst January 543 - 543 720 _ 720
EREM/ (R Increase/(release) during the year 393 = 393 (177) = (177)
®12A318 At 315t December 936 - 936 543 = 543

RmREEBEHEHR
BENEME  DRFERR
SEAENSEEAREE -
RAmREBEREIRAE
B 78 A 37 {9 RE {E 5RO L AR R
ARHBREEFESHRES
e

Provisions for unearned premiums represent
the liability for short-term insurance contracts
for which the Group’s obligations are not
expired at year-end. The unexpired risk
provision relates to the insurance contracts for
which the Group expects to pay claims in
excess of the related unearned premium
provision.
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INSURANCE PAYABLE

At 31st December 2007, the ageing analysis of the
insurance payable by invoice date was as follows:

AKHE

Group
2007 2006
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
30 Within 30 days 1,056 942
31260H 31-60 days 1,163 1,294
61£90H 61-90 days 1,138 952
##id 90 H Over 90 days 1,956 1,529
5,313 4,717

Lt B Ak M sk % R it 22

2006F 12 31BN EHBEIEESAER
TERREERECENNEAARY
1,9058 JT(EEA B 1,898E 7T) © LK
BAEIKE RERBREREBES
TR EEER 2005 F N BB ERE R D IR E K
EARE GEE21) -

REBN2007F48BHEEZEER
I o

B &

H2006F 38  AAFMEEEE A
7) ' Promise Good Limited ([PGL]) » B2
—BREIHBEUAREE7,0008 T(E
BNBE7474BE ) NREBELEERHR
Bl it 2 W B D ERIRE © MN20075F 124
318 » AARENK PGLINENZ B R 11
BB (20065128308 © AR#¥4,500
Br SENBMA44838T) o KA F
BEENREARE L ANPGLERE
A QB EZEFPGLe

31

32

OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

The balance at 31st December 2006 included an amount
payable to the Group’s substantial shareholder, FIEC, of
RMB19.05 million (equivalent to approximately HK$18.98
million). The amount was unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand and represented the consideration
payable by the Group for acquiring the investment in
Huaneng Shares (Note 21) in 2005.

The amount was fully repaid by the Group in April 2007.

DEPOSITS RECEIVED

In March 2006, Promise Good Limited (“PGL"), an indirect
associate of the Company, executed an agreement with a
buyer to dispose of its toll road investments in Mainland
China at a consideration of RMB70 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$74.74 million). The Company has
received consideration from the buyer on behalf of PGL
as at 31st December 2007 (31st December 2006: RMB45
million, equivalent to approximately HK$44.83 million).The
consideration held by the Company are interest-free and
repayable by the Company to PGL on the latter’s demand.
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33 SRATHE K

33 BANK BORROWINGS

EEEREAT
Group and Company
2007 2006
BETIT BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
RITEFR - BIEH Bank loans, secured 184,010 63,874
W BRERRBEERZ Less: Amounts due within one year
—FRE B FRIE included under current liabilities (40,422) (15,945)
143,588 47,929

RER » ANAFIEBEEER 2006512
A31AREFWRITEREE6,4008
T o ZERUAEEEF —EYEBE
HE L IBo)EER - ZWER20065F
1A B ZEREFERBEE13978 T
ZIRIRMERFARNESHIT o

RER  RATRR—RBITIRBM=FH
FEHERERE R BE 1 8ETIERARE
BMNHMEXEENMEERIR—F
FERNRBREKBES0BTIEAR
BESHR RITERUBTREN -
WAREBHRITFR B3 5628 T
(FEF227) ~ 1A20075F 12831 H IREI{EE
BESIDETINETYXEBEHREL
WEH )RR XABHNHE LR EEHE
BRABAREEEHRM I REERILIF o

During the year, the Company has fully repaid the
outstanding bank loans at 31st December 2006 of HK$64
million.These loans were secured by one of the properties
(including the leasehold land component) of the Group
with a net book value of HK$13.97 million at 31st
December 2006 and the mortgaged property was released
during the year.

During the year, the Company has drawn down three-year
floating rate term loans totalling HK$180 million for
financing the property project of Minxin Suzhou (Note 17)
and a floating rate revolving loan of HKS5 million for
working capital purposes from a bank.These bank loans
are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and secured by the
Group's bank deposit of HK$35.62 million (Note 27), certain
properties (including the leasehold land component) with
a book value of HK$57.52 million as at 31st December 2007
and share mortgages of the Company’s subsidiaries,
namely Min Xin Properties Limited and Minxin Suzhou.
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33 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

RITEREBBEWOT: The maturity profile of the bank loans is as follows:
AREREAT
Group and Company
2007 2006
BETIT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
—FR Within 1 year 40,422 15,945
ZR—FERMER More than 1 year but within 2 years 89,636 15,960
ZIMEBREERN More than 2 years but within 5 years 53,952 31,969
184,010 63,874

RTERFNERESBRTRAEREME
EZiE  RNEEEHNEBERERRE53E
(20065F12H31H:5.5[E) °

A S i 15 A

EEMRIEHAEELINEREZERRER
BIE 2 B2 17.5% (2006%F: 17.5%) K &
Bl A0 1t 5 18 2 %% 2 25% (2006 5F : 33%) 1F
2EERE  EREAERANTEERBIIE
EEHENBKaERE  mMELMS
B R E— iR - BIRASERIES
BEERELERSHEETEIKE -

34

The bank loans were bearing interest at a spread over
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the effective
interest rate at the balance sheet date was 5.3% per annum
(31st December 2006: 5.5%).

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a taxation rate
of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) for Hong Kong taxation and 25%
(2006: 33%) for Mainland China taxation. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority.
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34

EERBEEE(BBZE2BHWT

account is as follows:

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement on the deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

AEE AATF
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BETFIT| BYTT | BETFT| BE¥ T
HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
H1B1H At 1st January (28,790) 351 (28,854) —
TEFEBRE Deferred taxation charged
MR 2 IELER IR to current year’s
income statement (4,006) (2,568) (4,137) (2,281)
HEEERESM Deferred taxation charged
‘EEHNR directly to investment
ZIRER IR revaluation reserve (20,763)]  (26,573)| (20,763)|  (26,573)
HRIETERZIEEBIIE  Deferred taxation
de-recognised 47,336 — 47,336 —
”»12H31H At 31st December (6,223) (28,790) (6,418) (28,854)

EEFSHEENDEEABR SRR
FERRRERBGEANSRMBATEE 2
FIBERER - 2007128318 » K&
EEGFTARBRABTELOBE159ET
(20065F : #5851 3118 o) 0] 45 8 LUK 8
RIRFEBRFUWNA - WEFIBITEPRE o

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At
31st December 2007, the Group has estimated
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$159 million
(2006: approximately HK$131 million) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses have no
expiry date.
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34 BB () 34 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
(i) FRELEAMSHEEREEZEE (i)  The movement in deferred income tax assets and
(BE[E) — & it [ 2 48R IK 85 AT ) 20 liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the
T (&) same taxation jurisdiction) during the year is as

follows: (Continued)

R HiE iy 1 B Deferred income tax assets
KLE The Group
et &R B ok
Accrued expenses Tax losses Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
BEFT | BETFr | BT | BETr | B%Fr | BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M1B18 At 1st January — — (1,997) (2,533) (1,997) (2,533)
EEHEX RE)/ MK (Credited)/charged to
income statement (2) — (602) 536 (604) 536
W12H318 At 31st December (2) — (2,599) (1,997) (2,601) (1,997)
KA The Company
BiiE
Tax losses
2007 2006
BEFIT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
MW1B1H At 1st January (376) (433)
EEBERMKR Charged to income statement 57 57
M12831H At 31st December (319) (376)
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34 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

EREERN UK ENMEHEER (ii)
EREHMEHEREERE  mE
IEFRSHLS K B — B BAES - BT
WIEEFR SR EERIELEFTSHE
BEEREKE - T ABERBER -

THEREGAEERBERRAT]

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset

when there is a legally enforceable right to set off

current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The following amount,

determined after appropriate offsetting, is shown in

BR : the consolidated balance sheet:
AEE b N
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BEFT| E¥FT | BEFT| BETT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EEFEHEE Deferred income tax assets
#1218 B & Uk = To be recovered
after 12 months 514 509 — —
#1218 B Rl = To be recovered
within 12 months 11 17 — —
525 526 — —
ELFEHER Deferred income tax liabilities
B 1218 B &8 To be settled
after 12 months (6,748) (29,473) (6,418) (28,854)
B 1218 B R To be settled
within 12 months — 157 — —
(6,748) (29,316) (6,418) (28,854)
(6,223) (28,790) (6,418) (28,854)
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35 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

ARIT:
2006 £ AR B
Hit

R2006F 128318
ZREEF

Representing:
2006 proposed dividend
Others

Retained profits
as at 31st December 2006

(b) ARZAH (b) The Company
H{pffE £ Other reserves
EXMED REER
e fEE
Bx  RRiEE Capital Investment REiF
Share Share redemption revaluation Vit Retained ok
capital  premium reserve reserve  Sub-total profits Total
BETT EETT EETn #BETn AY%Tn A% Tn  EETR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
20071818 At 1st January 2007 459,429 384,620 47,086 239,154 670,860 24,345 1,154,634
ARLESRERE Change in fair value of
AEELE available-for-sale
financial assets — — — 688,044 688,044 — 688,044
BRELHEHERE Deferred income tax
liabilities recognised — — — (20,763) (20,763) — (20,763)
RIEERELFEGHEE  Deferred income tax
liabilities de-recognised — — — 47,336 47,336 — 47,336
HETHREECRHEE Disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets — — — (49,595) (49,595) — (49,595)
REEEF Profit for the year = — = — — 85,804 85,804
RE Dividend — — — — — (18,377) (18,377)
2007128318 At 31st December 2007 459,429 384,620 47,086 904,176 1,335,882 91,772 1,887,083
AT Representing:
2007 F KIS 2007 proposed dividend 27,566
Hith Others 64,206
M2007F 128318 Retained profits
ZRE & as at 31st December 2007 91,772
2006F 1818 At 1st January 2006 459,429 384,620 47,086 4,308 436,014 17,940 913,383
AREELRERE Change in fair value of available-
AFEZD for-sale financial assets — - — 261419 261,419 — 261419
BRELHEHERE Deferred income tax
liabilities recognised — — — (26,573) (26,573) — (26,573)
AEERF Profit for the year = = = = = 20,188 20,188
RE Dividend - - - - — (13,783)  (13,783)
2006F12A318 At 31st December 2006 459,429 384,620 47,086 239,154 670,860 24,345 1,154,634

18,377
5,968

24,345
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35 EAR KGR S (E)

35 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

() WA (c) Share capital
2007 2006
RH&E #EEFT K& E BEFT
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HKS$'000
EEREX Authorised
EBR Ordinary shares of
FREB 1T HKS1 each 800,000,000 800,000 800,000,000 800,000
@R 0 BT Ordinary shares, issued
30 ES and fully paid
ZBER Ordinary shares of
BREYIT HK$1 each 459,428,656 459,429 | 459,428,656 459,429

(d)

EEREEARREBABEIRKE
BE  WERREELRERE—
SNRERE - IREBERROEAR
REARBEERERSES °

(i)

(i)

il e 2 A PR % L 9
M

TR it 17 % 5 S JIE ] 1% 1 2
RO EERERAELDFES
HER » DRIZEB(A TR
5 25 48B 1% K2 55 49H IR FT R

& o

EEREEIRE S E R

AMRFIAEEEGI R EM B
REFEFBH 2 RES -

(d)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are

entitled to one vote per share at shareholders’

meetings. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)  Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account

and the capital redemption reserve is governed

by Sections 48B and 49H respectively of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(ii) Satutory reserve

The statutory reserve is set aside from retained

earnings in accordance with the relevant
statutory requirements in Mainland China and

Macao.
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35

E A K it 4 ()
(d) foli 5 4 AT B 28 ()
(iii) AR

ZEBBENRREEAR
3 — R

(iv) BA#H2
EXRFESERE

—  2001F 1A 1H AT A
MEBARREE QR
REEREENBER
rEBREEGRKEEN
AEREE - 8BRS
REBHLAFLFEESH
RABENEE &

— —HEEZEHEERIENH
BLRARBEFESLM
BEELEEARLE I
IR o

() BEFMHMEE

REEMHBERENES
AARATR—HAREFER
FAENTHEESRMEEN
RET QX EZE)FHE (RiEEE
EERRCAR, X ) 0 WAR
B0 BN ST BRE
o

35

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii) General reserve

(v)

The general reserve is transferred from retained
earnings and is available for general use.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

— goodwill and the excess of the Group's
interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost arising
from consolidation of subsidiaries and
associates acquired prior to 1st January
2001; and

— capitalisation of reserves for the purpose
of increasing the share capital of a jointly
controlled entity and its subsidiaries in
previous years.

Investment reval uation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets (less related
deferred tax credit/charge) held by the
Company and a jointly controlled entity at the
balance sheet date and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out
in Note 2.10.
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35 EAR KGR E (B
(d) fili 4 B R B B W (D)

35 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(Vi) SFEE DT S 1ok i < (vi) Exchange translation reserve
HNEFERESERRES
SMBAT - BEARARH
BEHERNMBEREREAR
NEAZRECIEENIE
EREZE FERBSRE

The exchange translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities into the reporting currency

FE222EMNEFBERE of the Company. The reserve is dealt with in
bi:: i) accordance with the accounting policy set out
in Note 2.22.
36 EAKYE 36 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

(@) BRI () Property development and sale

*%E eI
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BETIT| BT | BEFT| BEFT
HK$’000 HKS’000 HKS$’000 HKS’000
EEHNEREME  Contracted but not
provided for 2,546 — — —




36 HAKYE (H)
(b) % - BEdR KB

36 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Property, plant and equipment

FKE AT
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BT | BT | BEFr | BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000
B AEREE  Contracted but not
provided for 177 165 177 165
REFT A LIMEBE The Group's share of
AL R capital commitments of
BERZERE the jointly controlled
EUT: entities not included
above is as follows:
B M{EREHE Contracted but not
provided for 505 36
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37 FA A&
(a) A&MA

A2007F128318 » ZERRAAD
ARBA AR LEEEMAR
ARFZF2HBEHEESRUOT :

(@) Aslessee

37 LEASE COMMITMENTS

Annual Report 2007 4 ¥&

At 31st December 2007, the Group and the Company
had future aggregate minimum lease payments

payable under non-cancellable operating leases as

follows:
AEHE AATF
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BETIT| BT | BETFIT| BT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
FEihE Land and buildings
EF—FA Within one year 1,032 316 2,109 252
EZFEEAFE Inthesecondto
W (BEER fifth year inclusive
M) 466 90 156 920
1,498 406 2,265 342
(b) HAA As lessor

A2007F128318 » ZERRAAD
ABB RO 2 LEHEMNR R
REWR 2 HEEESFRNOT -

At 31st December 2007, the Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments receivable

under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

3L AT
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
BT | BT | BT | BETT
HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEihE Land and buildings
EF—FR Within one year 5,101 5,401 1,621 2,336
F_FEZEARF Inthesecondto
A (BREER fifth year inclusive
M ) 5,621 6,509 3,287 1,312
ERFRUE In the sixth year
and thereafter 642 — 642 —
11,364 11,910 5,550 3,648

AEEHBAcEEREEYHE2HE
EFHB—FEAFIE  HEH
WZzBETIEERE -

The lease terms for business and residential
properties leased out by the Group range from one
to six years and with fixed rentals throughout the
lease periods.
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38 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH

FLOW STATEMENT

(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net
cash (outflow)/inflow from operations

2007 2006
BT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BR AR A Profit before taxation 226,585 106,418
A Adjustments for:
EEEREHNEBEES Share of results of jointly controlled entities (147,440) (99,033)
EibBE AT EE Share of results of associates (14,449) 4,137)
RENENFENE Fair value gains on revaluation of investment properties (13,799) (5,807)
BRATEERBRIIRN Fair value gains on listed equity securities
rhkEES A FERE measured at fair value through profit or loss (260) (923)
EWEFRESE Impairment on loan receivable = 3,227
NEREH Depreciation and amortisation 4,855 2,003
HE— B D &K (b) Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (b) = (1,979)
HETHRHEESRHEE NS Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets (49,655) —
HEME BERREFSE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 6 18
BIEZANEWA Interest income from bank deposits (6,520) 9,773)
Hml A (o) Other income (c) = (1,521)
FEZH Interest expenses 9,622 8,068
ERWEFHE Net exchange gains (9,345) (5,647)
REBEEEBER Changes in working capital:
T35 AL N Increase in land use right (305,759) =
EERERARD /(2 m) Decrease/(increase) in deferred acquisition costs 2,917 (2,416)
REBERTRD / (15) Decrease/(increase) in insurance receivable 2,874 (557)
BREEERD Decrease in reinsurance assets 2,965 598
Hib iR (8 ) /R (Increase)/decrease in other debtors (250) 142
BATKRES (0Em Hd (Increase)/decrease in prepayments and deposits (819) 267
RBRENRD Decrease in insurance contracts (14,245) (4,335)
RIBEATIEM, (HD) Increase/(decrease) in insurance payable 596 (920)
HiEA AR ETE R (Decrease)/increase in other creditors and accruals
(R4) /1 m (13,426) 12,934
Bz &1 m Increase in deposits received 26,694 29,848
EXESR Exchange difference 1,634 927
TETEHES (RH) /RAFE  Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operations (297,219) 27,402
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38 HEEBlaimELERE (8 38 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)
(b) HE—MEAE (b) Saleof asubsidiary
2007 2006
BEFIT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RE Consideration = 9,746
ENRZHA Transaction costs paid = (830)
— 8,916
W HECEETE Less: Net assets disposed of
ME - BEREZE Property, plant and equipment
(F'15) (Note 15) — 575
T AR FE17) Land use rights (Note 17) — 68,304
Hib W R Other debtors = 1,532
BRRkEZS Prepayment and deposits — 24
ReRBITEE Cash and bank balances — 166
HinEM IR R EFE R Other creditors and accruals — (6,123)
pSE RN Short term advances — (43,226)
= naw
A OBRRES Less: Minority interests = 33
m: HERERZMNE Add: Exchange translation reserve
nERES released on disposal = 1008
HE K E Gain on disposal — 1,979
HEZRERAFE Net cash inflow on disposal
ReRE Cash consideration — 9,746
BERRZEAR Transaction costs paid — (830)
— 8,916
HEMBARZREER Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary
BEeZEY disposed of = (165)
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39

;zn/l\ (] ﬁﬁi{llb éj{*% (%ﬁ)
(b) HE—KEAR ()
72006528168 » NEBEE—BIE

=EFTUmE HEERBEEAEFE
HEIS1%1RE ReREAARE
1 010%7_5 Z(EHEE708T) - B
HEASEBEBRNMESHENIE
&r‘;ﬂ%éﬁmmﬁﬁz BEERFER
2006 F 6 A EA o B E2006%F
NRANBLEFE  AEBEHEZEK
B W B 1988 T (E126)

(c) EHEIEBERT

20065 » RATWEAFESA

R¥E1568 T(EEBE 1528 T)H
FREWZE » URBFEREBTE

FE-BFENRSHE-

ClE YN

RERFRFEMBE/RE - WAKEERE
HEESREEEGZA T HEEI B R
HERRLBEEALE  IARZF
R HMAKRERZA T IZ L EES
FHEEAZE  ERAELEEHEE
B BEEATAUREA EEEE
AEBWHE - TERRK REARRK
ERE) REMER - UREEZAEE
EBEATEAZENER  E505H
BATHERAL -
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£L)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Saleof asubsidiary (Continued)

On 16th February 2006, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose of its entire 51% equity interest in
Jinan Pacific to an independent third party for a cash
consideration of RMB10.1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$9.7 million). The disposal was subject
to the completion of the relevant governmental and
regulatory approval process, which was completed in June
2006. A gain of HK$1.98 million (Note 6) was recognised
by the Group upon the completion of the disposal for the
year ended 31st December 2006.

(c) Major non-cash transaction

In 2006, the Company received certain investment
properties with a fair value of RMB1.56 million
(equivalent to HK$1.52 million) in lieu of cash
compensation in the settlement of a dispute brought
forward from previous years.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purposes of these consolidation financial
statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the party or exercise significant influence over the
party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice
versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to
common control or common significant influence.Related
parties may be individuals (being members of key
management personnel, significant shareholders and/or
their close family members) or other entities and include
entities which are under the significant influence of related
parties of the Group where those parties are individuals.
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39 FHEANLRS ()

BRRAVBEHEREMIABOREN » £H
EERXBHERNETZEEZRREA
ITRGEEMT :

(a)

()

2007128318 » AEEEER
HEZHESMEE 2 FRE B
3,018 JL(20065F : B¥518,1258
L) o WERRWF BN —REE
FEFE  KEBAXRFERLME
T SR BB E1258 7T (2006
F . B¥A0EBTT) -

FRAEREEN—ERBARR —H
EEFHEREN XK MEENER
BIWA (BHNKRESR) &5t8%378
E JT(2006%F : B #3498 T) o Itk
ZHAEEARZREEREB R
BHEME=EFF2BEAREZ
BEEE -

AAROEERREFERAF
[EFE)ZNEEEBE188E T
(20065 : B# 1888 t) » IEBAH
RE—MDERHRRME - LEER
% BEREEETAQRESER
2B -

Annual Report 2007 4 ¥&

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial

statements, significant related party transactions which

were carried out in the normal course of the Group'’s

business are as follows:

(a)

()

As of 31st December 2007, the Group had deposits
with jointly controlled financial institutions totalling
HK$30.18 million (2006: HK$181.25 million). The
deposits carry interest at normal commercial rates
and have generated interest income of HK$1.25
million (2006: HK$4.10 million) to the Group for the
year.

Gross insurance premium less commission paid
totalling HK$3.78 million (2006: HK$3.49 million) was
derived from business referred to a subsidiary by a
jointly controlled entity during the year. Those
insurance policies underwritten by the Group were
contracted at prices and terms not less favourable
than those contracted with other third party
customers of the Group.

An amount of HK$1.88 million (2006: HK$1.88
million) was paid to Vigour Fine Company Limited
(“Vigour Fine”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for the provision of certain management
services which include the provision of directors to
the board of directors of the Company pursuant to a
management agreement.
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720065 - NATHEEFENEB %
3FEHINE R EE11,7008 T © B
ERDNBEHEFREMIXAPER
HEEF A D BRI 100%ER » W
RARFEREFHEMBRIE
€ FHEERECEES - AR
RATKREEAREBERKIDH
o ZBEERHERNR2006F FHE
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ZHEBEIRELTERE -

FTEEEAEB

SARITHAEEZ20075 & 20065

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d)

In 2006, the Company obtained a three-year term
loan of HK$117 million from Vigour Fine for purposes
of bidding the equity interests of two companies
registered in Mainland China in a public auction.
These two companies were principally engaged in
property development and sale and were controlled
by FIEC.The loan was fully repaid in 2006 following
the unsuccessful bidding by the Company in the
public auction. Interest and arrangement fees
amounted to HK$0.33 million were paid by the
Company to Vigour Fine in 2006.

Key management personnel

The senior executives’ emolument for the year ended

1AMBILEFEZ2MEUT: 31st December 2007 and 2006 are detailed as
follows:

2007 2006

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HKS'000

[k Fees 1,050 982
7% EERHEMEZE Salaries, housing and other

By REYF R allowances, and benefits in kind 7,545 6,458
BORE FIET B R Contributions to retirement

benefit scheme 72 72

R"E Bonus 4,030 2,430

12,697 9,942
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40 LA HAZEFIH 40 POST BALANCE SHEET DATE EVENTS

BRRAVBHRREMBOBEEN &
ERREESENFERENT ¢

H20085F 28 » AEEHE-BILE=F
(ZER]ZHTEEHZ  UWRERE
ARH790E T (ZENEBH844E T) H
EXEEHEP-EHEREYE ([ZY
X - WREBUSEMLE  ZWER
2007F 1231 ANEREER B 7008

JG ©

BEAREHE  AEECREZER
—ZBARE3BT(FENBE4228T
WREEE - ZIERXHTEFTH20085F £
MERR  AEEERSEIHERS
HBEE124B T ©

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, a summary of significant post balance sheet
date events are disclosed as follows:

In February 2008, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third party (“the Buyer”) to
dispose of one of the Group’s investment properties (“the
Property”) at a cash consideration of RMB7.9 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$8.44 million). The
carrying value of the property was HK$7 million at 31st
December 2007 based on an independent professional
valuation.

As at the date of this report, the Group has received a cash
deposit of RMB3.95 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$4.22 million) from the Buyer. The transaction is
expected to be completed in the first half year of 2008 and
a gain on disposal of approximately HK$1.24 million will
be recognised by the Group.
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RHAEREZ ERZY
SCHEDUL E OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERE

FOR INVESTMENT

XEE maes
FEfb SR BEHE

HEHE Group's Approximate  IREFF&

Lease attributable gross floor Existing

& Location expiry interest area use
(%) (F75 Rsq. ft.)

(1) NBEMAR i B R E847-8655 Shops 7 &8 on ground floor including 2049 100 14,841 [EES
KRBT L7 R 85 store 8 on the cockloft therein and Commercial
Mo EE  1ERUERE the whole of 1st and 2nd floors

Winfield Building
847-865 Canton Road, Yaumatei
Hong Kong
2 BEEBEREE IR Apartment A, 34/F of Tower | 2060 100 1,276 (e
BEF-EMEAE Park Towers Residential
1 King's Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

(3) PEARKNELZTEHEE 10/F, Block B of City Plaza 2043 100 10,020 [SES

NEEHHESBEEI0E Balizhuang, Chaoyang District, Beijing City Commercial
The People’s Republic of China

@) FEARANEBEERMNT 22/F and 23/F, Worldwide Plaza 2044 100 41,288 [5E3

AMERI58EIRRES 2288 238 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou Commercial
The People’s Republic of China

5) PEARHNEEEEREMD Carpark Nos. #24 to #28 and #42 to #48 2044 100 5,227 GGES

AME 1585 IRRES 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou Commercial

BB #24T $28 R 4425 #48

The People’s Republic of China
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